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County of Alameda, General Services Agency – Purchasing

RFP No. 900977, Addendum No. 2

COUNTY OF ALAMEDA

ADDENDUM No. 4
to

RFP No. 901098

for

Regional Renewable Energy Procurement
Specification Clarification/Modification and Recap of the RFP Questions and Site Walks
Held on November 18 – 25, 2013
	This County of Alameda, General Services Agency (GSA), RFP Addendum has been electronically issued to potential bidders via e-mail.  E-mail addresses used are those in the County’s Small Local Emerging Business (SLEB) Vendor Database or from other sources.  If you have registered or are certified as a SLEB, please ensure that the complete and accurate e-mail address is noted and kept updated in the SLEB Vendor Database.  This RFP Addendum will also be posted on the GSA Contracting Opportunities website located at http://www.acgov.org/gsa/purchasing/bid_content/ContractOpportunities.jsp.


**The following Exhibits have been revised.  Bidders must use REVISED Exhibits when submitting their bid response.  REVISED Exhibits can be found on the County website at: http://www.acgov.org/gsa_app/gsa/purchasing/bid_content/contractopportunities.jsp
 (under Bid Number:  RFP# 901098)

· REVISED Exhibit B.2A (named “Exhibit B.2A – PRICING SUBMITTAL FORM – Bid Bundle L1 Final v2”)

· REVISED Exhibit C.1 Bundling Spreadsheet (named “Exhibit C.1 – Bundling Spreadsheet v2”) 
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Alameda County is committed to reducing environmental impacts across our entire supply chain. 

If printing this document, please print only what you need, print double-sided, and use recycled-content paper.

The following Sections have been modified to read as shown below.  Changes made to the original RFP document are in bold print and highlighted, and deletions made have a strike through.

The following Exhibits are new and are attached to this Addendum: 
· Exhibit H (List of Qualified Bidders)
· Exhibit I (Site Walk Attendees) 

· Exhibit J (Workforce Development Conference Attendees) 
· As stated in the Notice of Qualification issued on October 29, 2013:

Please note that the attendance at the Workforce Development conference [was] mandatory.   Bidders must send a representative.  Failure to send a representative will result in reduction in the scoring for the workforce program under Evaluation Criterion D, Project Approach, Implementation Plan, and Schedule.
Page 6 of the RFP, Section I.B. (SCOPE), Item 1 (Overview of Bid Bundles), TABLE 1 – BID BUNDLES, has been revised as follows: 

TABLE 1 – BID BUNDLES

	Bundle Name
	Agencies per Bundle
	Total Capacity of Bundle (kW)
	Number of Sites per Bundle

	S1
	Small Bundle: Castro Valley Sanitary District, City of Menlo Park, City of Mountain View, City of Emeryville, City of Richmond, Hayward Area Recreation and Park District
	6
	503 
	                         15 

	S2
	Small bundle: County of Alameda, City of Oakland, City of Berkeley, Alameda County Fire Department
	4
	505 
	30

	M1
	Medium Bundle 1: UC Berkeley, City of Fremont, Hayward Area Recreation and Park District
	3
	                 3,065 
	                            16

	M2
	Medium Bundle 2: County of Alameda, City of Oakland, Alameda County Fire Department
	3
	                  2,437 
	                         20

	M3
	Medium bundle 3: Contra Costa County, Central Contra Costa Sanitary District, City of Richmond, City of Walnut Creek
	4
	                  2,894 
	                         16 

	M4
	Medium Bundle 4: City of Cupertino, City of Foster City, City of Menlo Park, City of Mountain View, City of Redwood City, County of San Mateo
	6
	                  2,104 
	12 

	L1
	Large Bundle: County of Alameda, County of San Mateo, UC Berkeley
	3
	                  8,0717,428  
	5 4 

	BA1
	PV Bid Alternate Bundle 1: City of Berkeley, City of Emeryville, City of Oakland, UC Berkeley
	4
	5,407
	70

	BA2
	PV Bid Alternate Bundle 2: County of Alameda
	1
	5,000
	1

	F1
	Fuel Cell: County of Alameda
	1
	1,500 
	2 

	
	TOTAL
	
	31,486 30,843
	187 186

	T1
	Solar Thermal*
	1
	344,000 Btu/hr
	2

	*Solar thermal sites are not included in the total site number since these sites are also included in the PV bundles.


Page 9 of Exhibit B.1 (BID RESPONSE REQUIREMENTS PACKET), Item 3.(c) has been added:
(c)
Bidders must submit Exhibit B.2 (Pricing Submittal Form(s)), and Exhibit B.4 (Experience and Past Projects Form) in Excel format.
Exhibit B.2A (Pricing Submittal Form – Bid Bundle L1) has been revised as follows:
Site #16 (County of Alameda: Santa Rita Multiple Buildings, Bundle L1) has been removed from the Bid Form.

Exhibit C.1 (BUNDLING SPREADSHEET) has been revised as follows:

· Site #16 (County of Alameda: Santa Rita Multiple Buildings) has been removed.
The FTP site (ftp://alcoftp1.acgov.org) has been revised as follows (instructions for accessing the FTP site can be found in Exhibit C.5A):
· A REVISED site specification sheet has been included for Site #76 (City of Oakland’s Municipal Services Center, Bundle M2).
· A NEW site specification sheet has been included for Site #15 (County of Alameda’s Santa Rita Jail, Bundle L1).  This site specification sheet includes the elimination of one sub-site and the addition of another sub-site.
· Removal of the site specification sheet for Site #16 (County of Alameda’s Santa Rita Jail Multiple Buildings, Bundle L1).
The SFTP site (https://sftp.acgov.org) has been revised as follows (instructions for accessing the SFTP site can be found in Exhibit C.5B): 

· Electrical meter photos for the City of Menlo Park – Arrillaga Family Center / Gymnasium have been added. 

· Electrical meter photos for the City of Richmond – Civic Center Auditorium have been added. 

· Supplemental site information regarding the County of Alameda – Hayward Landfill has been added.
Responses to Written Questions

Q1) Are there any documents that indicate preferred locations for solar at each site? How was the recommended system capacity determined? Was it based on site consumption or the availability of space?
A1) Yes, the solar site spec sheets indicate the preferred locations for solar at each site. The solar site spec sheets can be found in Exhibit C.2, and are available on the R-REP FTP site (See Exhibit C.5A for instructions on how to access the FTP Site). Capacity was based on available space and/or off-settable load, depending on site specific conditions, with the goal of maximizing financial benefits within the constraints of each site.
Q2) The 'Installation Type' is listed out for each site and some include several types, such as, "Carport / Rooftop / Ground Mount". Does that mean there is an option as to what type to put on the site, or is a combination of all listed types necessary in order to meet the listed kW? 
A2) This depends on the site. Some sites require all installation types be used to reach the listed kW. Other sites allow Bidder’s to use their judgment to design a solar system using an optimal combination of installation type to achieve the best system price.
Q3) Has the approved list of Prime Respondents for the R-REP bid been made public? How many Qualified bidders are there?
A3) A total of 17 vendors were qualified to submit bids for the R-REP RFP, however one of the qualified firms has withdrawn itself from consideration. A list of the qualified firms is provided as an attachment to this addendum.
Q4) For the Mandatory Workforce Development Conference on December 6, 2013, can the qualified subcontractor EPC firm that was designated in Exhibit A attend, or is the Prime Firm mandated to attend?
A4) All qualified firms were informed in an email on December 4, 2013 that the prime contractor must send a representative from its firm to attend the workforce development conference.  Subcontractors we also invited to attend, in addition to the prime firm.
Q5) In the Technical Proposal sections 6d and 6f.  Some sites like the Santa Rita Jail in Bundle L1 (as well as other L1 bundle sites) have multiple sub-sites (ground mount, rooftops, and carport components).  Are bidders required to submit layout and single-line diagrams for each of the sub-sites as well? 
A5) Bidders are required to submit proposals that provide Agencies with best value systems for each site. All proposed arrays should be included in layouts and single-line diagrams for each sub-site. 
Q6) For what length of time from RFP submission date is pricing required to be valid?
A6) Per the RFP, a bid shall remain open to acceptance by the County and Participating Agencies and is irrevocable for a period of two hundred and ten (210) days.
Q7) Exhibit C.1, column K “Recommended System Capacity (kWdc)”: are these capacities minimums/maximums or required capacities that bidders have to hit, or just recommendations? If a bidder’s analysis shows less capacity is possible, then should the bidder use their own capacity numbers in bidding a specific site?
A7) These capacities are recommendations. The bidders should use their own expertise to determine the best value system sizes. 

Q8) If a bidder disagrees with the RFP given “Site Specs” (for example Azimuth Angle, “no shading” statement) should the Site Specs be used or the bidders best judgment?
A8) Bidders' best judgment should be used to provide the Agencies a best value solution. For PV production modeling purposes, the PVsyst assumptions in Exhibit B.3 must be used. Assumptions that do not match on-site conditions can be corrected during contract negotiations.
Q9) If bidder finds a fixed tilt solution more favorable than a tracker solution, can the bidder propose such modifications to the RFP request? 
A9) Yes, the bidder can propose such modifications to the RFP request. Please include a narrative rationale for the change in your proposal. 

Q10) Exhibit C.1, column G “PG&E Rate Schedule”, are participants amenable to changing their PG&E tariffs if a solar installation moves forward at a particular site?
A10) Yes, all participating agencies are aware and amenable to rate schedule changes at their sites if the change would be financially beneficial.
Q11) May bidders propose alternative solar production and pricing if bidder feels that the assumptions in Exhibit B.3 are non-optimal for any particular sites?
A11) No. Bidders must use the assumptions in Exhibit B.3 for modeling production for use in the completion of Exhibit B.2. If the bidder feels that the assumptions are non-optimal and/or inaccurate for any particular site, the bidder may address this in the narrative. During contract negotiations, production modeling that accounts for all relevant assumptions will be expected and required. 

Q12) The parameters in Exhibit B.3 seem clearly to point to using PVsyst v6. As has been previously discussed, PVsyst v6 has some known bugs.  Please confirm that PVsyst version 5.64 and above will be accepted. 
A12) Yes, PVsyst v5 and above are accepted for analysis, assuming all the assumptions match, or an explanation for varying assumptions is provided. Additionally, please provide in proposal the version number that is used. 

Q13) For the L1 and BA2 bundle sites, will 1000V systems be allowed or do bidders have to design and bid for 600V?
A13) 1000V systems will be allowed, but wire and other system components must include the capacity to handle 1000V. Individual agencies may have additional requirements.
Q14) Some of the RFP given PVSyst modeling requirements don’t fit the actual site conditions (for example “Lower temperature for Absolute Voltage limit -10° C”, “Limit overload loss to 3%”). This limits our ability to optimize the design (modules per string, DC/AC sizing ratio, etc.). What is the intent for limiting the design flexibility and possibly reducing the favorable outcome of PPA rates etc.?
A14) The purpose of providing modeling requirements is to standardize the process. For the purposes of production modeling, please use the assumptions specified in Exhibit B.3. If a vendor would like to propose alternative assumptions, this can be addressed in the narrative, but should not be used in running PVsyst. 

Q15) Will the bidder get a chance to revisit the design assumptions and revise production and PPA calculations once short listed or chosen for a specific site/portfolio? (Replace no shading losses with shading models, correct azimuth angles, revise number of modules per string, revise DC/AC ratio, revise total capacity and production…)
A15) The final system design and assumptions may be updated once a vendor has been shortlisted or chosen for a specific site or bundle. Expected production may change, but pricing must not increase.  
Q16) On many of the sites, the energy offset recommended by the consultant assessments is quite low and variable.  There doesn’t appear to be one standard offset level targeted across the sites.  Our standard design methodology is to target a 90% power offset  to accommodate potential future decreases in usage.  Can we use this 90% offset metric in all of our designs or are we bound by the offset percentage recommended by the consultant assessments? 
A16) Where space is available, a target offset of 75% to 85% is preferable depending on the site’s rate tariff and load profile. However, many sites have limited space for solar. The site spec sheet for each site attempts to capture the available space for solar and corresponding approximate offset.
Q17) The electrical industry has accepted aluminum conductors as a preferred material; the utilities use aluminum conductors exclusively.  The current aluminum conductor specifications are superior to the aluminum conductors produced in the 60s and 70s.  When today’s aluminum conductors are installed properly, they are just as reliable as their copper conductor counterparts.  Installations that use aluminum conductors will have a better ROI than the same installations using copper conductors.  Can aluminum conductors be used in the designs?
A17) No. Copper conductors are required.
Q18) The industry has evolved to using transformerless (or non-isolated) inverter technology due to the benefits this technology provides.  Some of these benefits include higher efficiencies, cooler operating temperatures, lighter units, and most importantly, safer units due to their improved ground-fault detection capability.  Will the County reconsider the galvanic isolation requirement for all inverters to allow the use of transformerless inverters?
A18) Yes.  Please identify in the Exceptions portion of your proposal response that you intend to use transformerless inverters.   

Q19) Numerous studies have shown that capping the AC or DC voltage drop at 1.5% does not increase the ROI.  This is because the cost to install the larger conductors to reach these voltage drop values will not be recouped in increased generation delivered at the point of common coupling.  Can the acceptable total voltage drop be increased to 3% in DC circuits and 2.5% in AC circuits? 
A19) Bidders may offer a solution that has a voltage drop of greater than 1.5% provided they identify their request for relief from that specification in the Exceptions portion of their proposal. Any such requests must identify the dollar savings associated with the exclusion.  Requests for relief from technical requirements will be considered and approved at the sole discretion of the County. 
Q20) Will the participating agencies be handling all of the CEQA (California Environmental Quality Act) related assessments and filings?
A20) Yes, the participating agencies will be handling all of the CEQA related assessments and filings.
Q21) Will the participating agencies be providing geotech reports on each site, or are we to assume that we will be responsible to provide that for any site that the agencies have not already provided a geotech report?
A21) If geotech reports are available they will be found on the RFP SFTP site (see Exhibit C.5B for instructions on how to access the SFTP site). In all applicable cases (i.e., ground-mounted and shade structure systems), Bidders will be responsible for conducting their own geotechnical reports to confirm existing conditions.   

Q22) Has all of the potential asbestos material been identified that may impact the installations?  Will the agencies be responsible for any asbestos abatement if it is required for the installation of any system?
A22) No, all of the potential asbestos materials that may impact the installations have not necessarily been identified.  Should asbestos abatement be required, it will be addressed using the Change Order provisions in the contract.  Bidders should assume mitigation responsibility if asbestos materials are present and disturbed during the site construction process. These responsibilities and reporting requirements are described in Exhibit E.2, Cash Acquisition Terms and Conditions, 00 73 56, Hazardous Materials Procedures and Requirements.
Q23) Some installations will be roof mounted; what assumptions should be made regarding the existing condition of the roof, specifically if it is an older roof?  Are the participating agencies planning any roofing replacement to be done in conjunction with the solar installations?  Will we be responsible for any roof penetrations if required?  What responsibility will we have relative to maintaining existing roofing warranties if penetrations need to be made in a roof still under warranty?
A23) Assumptions made by bidders regarding older roofs should be highlighted in Bidders’ proposals. Those agencies planning on roof replacement have been identified in the site spec sheets (See Exhibit C.2 and instructions for accessing the ftp site in Exhibit C.5A). Bidders will be responsible for roof penetrations, as described in the specifications. Bidders are expected to maintain existing roofing warranties. 

Q24) There are many potential unforeseen issues that can arise that will render a site non-viable such as structural integrity, specific conduit runs, or underground constraints.  Additionally, once we have seen a specific site that was not included in the tour, assumptions that were made during RFP pricing phase may prove to be unrealistic and have a negative impact on our bundle pricing.  At what point will we have the opportunity to visit each site within any given bid bundle in order to confirm the sufficiency of all the sites and firm up the exact sites (with or without site shift)?
A24) During the contract negotiations phase, all sites in the recommended vendor’s bundle will be available for full reviews by the recommended vendor. Scheduling for site visits during negotiations will be coordinated with the project contact for each applicable Participating Agency.
Q25) One of the Proposing Bidder’s responsibilities is to determine technical and economic feasibility of system sites prior to contract award (Page 9 of the RFP).  At what point is this to be done since the County was very clear in Addendum 1 that we were not to visit any site other than RFP?  Are we to determine economic feasibility of a site after we have already committed to bundle pricing?
A25) Use the information provided in the Exhibits to perform as much analysis as possible on existing site conditions for sites that were not scheduled for bid walks. Use the historical usage information, in conjunction with recommended installation locations and sizes, to model economic feasibility. Bidders should determine economic feasibility prior to submitting their pricing proposals.
Q26) At what point in the process will we have access to every site in a bundle in order to determine final system configuration and finalize our pricing?
A26) During the contract negotiations phase, all sites in the recommended vendor’s bundle will be available for full reviews by the recommended vendor. Scheduling for site visits will be coordinated with the project contact for each applicable Participating Agency. 

Q27) What remedy will there be if consensus cannot be reached on specific sites relative to viability and that site is mandatory to maintain and deliver the guaranteed bundle pricing?
A27) Each Participating Agency will determine the viability of its own sites based upon submitted pricing and County Selection Committee Recommendations for Award. Firms submitting bundle pricing should anticipate that there may be some sites within each bundle for which unforeseen conditions or other factors exist which may result in the inability to proceed with an individual site or sites  as described.  Therefore, bundle pricing as described in Exhibit B.2 – Bid Form should anticipate +/- 10% site movement within the bundle.  Firms will be obligated to guarantee bundle pricing. 
Q28) Page 14 of Exhibit B.1 requests a detailed GANTT style schedule describing all phases of the “project” – would the County prefer to have one schedule for each project, which could become voluminous, or would the County prefer to have one Master Bundle Schedule with common tasks shown for each project as well as the tasks and durations for each individual project?   
A28) The County would prefer to have one Master Bundle Schedule with common tasks shown for each project, as well as the tasks and durations for each individual project.
Q29) During the tour one of the sites had some piles of dirt that may need to be moved to place the panels.  Will the contractor be responsible for all site work related to placing the systems, especially the ground mount systems?  Will we be responsible to remove the dirt?  If so, is it certified as non-hazardous?  Will we be responsible for cut and fill on uneven sites?
A29) The contractor will be responsible for all necessary site work related to placing the systems. Plans for grading and dirt removal will be jointly coordinated between the vendor and the applicable Participating Agency. Known hazardous materials have been identified in the RFP Exhibits; strategies for managing unforeseen or unforeseeable hazardous materials will be determined during contract negotiations. See question #22 for additional information on responsibilities for hazardous materials. 
Q30) On page 12 of Exhibit B.1 – Section 7 asks “how the Bidder intends to meet the County’s schedule.”  Is there a schedule with milestone completion dates, or specific completion dates that must be met for each bundle? 
A30) The County does not have a schedule with milestone stated in the RFP, however R-REP Participating Agencies generally expect design to commence in the summer or early fall 2014 with construction to complete as soon as practicable thereafter. Vendors are to provide a milestone completion schedule that is realistic and timely.
Q31) Can you provide clarification on the following RFP milestone dates: Vendor Interviews (Jan 29 – Feb 5) – will these interviews be with Alameda County, individual interviews with all of the agencies, or interviews before a committee representing all of the participating agencies?  Contract Negotiations (Feb 13 – June 18) – will we be negotiating with Alameda County or the individual agencies?  County of Alameda issuance of recommendation letter (July 1, 2014) - Can you provide clarification on what this letter represents and if there will be further negotiation with participating agencies following the issuance of the recommendation letter?
A31) Vendor interviews will be with the County Selection Committee, which is composed of County Staff, Staff of Participating Agencies, and other public agency employees who have expertise or experience in solar power and renewable energy systems and contracts. The County’s technical and financial consultants will also attend the vendor interviews. Vendor Interviews will be held in one location at a County of Alameda facility based upon the revised RFP schedule.
Once vendors are selected by the County Selection Committee (CSC), the County of Alameda will issue a recommendation for award for each bundle to the Participating Agencies.  Initially, the Participating Agencies will negotiate together on a bundle-by-bundle basis. After group negotiations are complete, vendors will have to carry out additional negotiations with each Participating Agency. The RFP Schedule date of August 12, 2014 -County of Alameda Board Letter, represents the estimated date on which the County of Alameda has completed contract negotiations for its own sites and intends to present the Alameda County Board of Supervisors with the CSC recommendations to proceed with the County’s projects.

Q32) For the ground mount sites that will require CCTV cameras, can we assume that there will be space on the agencies’ servers for data storage, and that any proprietary software required to tie into the agencies’ existing security systems will be provided by that agency?
A32) Though it is not possible to state if this will be the case for every site that will require CCTV cameras, when preparing proposals, assume that the data storage and necessary software will be provided by the applicable Participating Agency. 

Q33) Where will the lay-down areas be for each construction site?
A33) Lay-down areas will be available at some sites, but not necessarily available at every site. Where available, lay-down areas may be identified during site reviews during contract negotiations, or during the Design/Pre-Construction planning phase.
Q34) Will the energy usage data (demand data) be published for each site?
A34) All available energy usage data is posted on the FTP site (See Exhibit C.5A for instructions on how to access the FTP Site).
Q35) Will single lines be made available? 
A35) All available single-lines are posted on the SFTP site (See Exhibit C.5B for instructions on how to access the SFTP Site). 

Q36) Most of the Bundles are comprised of multiple small systems and multiple agencies/customers.  This is likely not the most efficient and cost effective way to procure solar for these agencies.  A better strategy would be for the participating municipalities to identify more efficient site locations for larger solar installations (ground mounts) and aggregate net meter the electricity under the RES-BCT program.  This would allow for the cheapest installation costs and allow the customers to target the most expensive meters for offset; thereby saving the most money and more effectively utilizing taxpayer funds.  Other than the Hayward Landfill, most of the sites do not follow this strategy.  It is understood that most of these sites were selected before the RES-BCT was available but is there the possibility for the participating municipalities to provide more appropriate sites that would allow for this?  It would result in better offers, both from a cash and PPA perspective.
A36) Vendors are expected to respond to the RFP as it is currently written and with consideration to the sites that have been put forth in the RFP.
Q37) Can the due date for bids be extended to a more reasonable date in mid-Jan?  The time and effort required to put together responsive proposals for this scale of RFP for both cash and PPA offers is considerable.  With the holiday season upon everyone, it only makes it more challenging.
A37) The due date for bids has been extended to January 14, 2014. Please see Addendum No. 3 with the revised schedule for RFP No. 901098
Q38) There are a few of the site that are not in the correct folders on the FTP site.  Should we use Exhibit C as the master list for projects assigned to certain bundles? 
A38) Yes, use Exhibits C.1 and C.2 to determine the bundle to which a project is assigned. 

Q39) Does our Operations & Maintenance bid need to include prevailing wage?
A39) Yes. California law requires payment of prevailing wage for maintenance work let by contract. 

Q40) In addition to Exhibit E.2 Cash Acquisition Terms & Conditions, do County of Alameda and Alameda County Fire projects have any additional contract requirements in any separate files? The other entities (e.g. City of Oakland) have general and special conditions broken out separately so we want to ensure there are no additional attachments to consider.
A40) The Unique Contracting Requirements and Required General Conditions for the County of Alameda and Alameda County Fire are referenced in Exhibits E.4 and E.5.
Q41) Page 12, Section 8 (Financial Strength): the RFP calls for 3 years of financial information, preferably by links.  Since these financials would take several hundreds of pages of paper to print, please confirm that R-REP does NOT except hard copies to be submitted, just electronic copies. 
A41) Yes, electronic copies or links are preferable.  Printed copies are not required.   

Q42) Exhibit B.1, page 3, regarding that the bid shall be irrevocable for a period of 210 days.  This is an extended period of time within which market pricing for labor, materials, and components can highly fluctuate.  Will R-REP accept a shorter period such as 90 days, with the ability of shortlisted developers to revise pricing beyond 90 days when in contract negotiations?
A42) No, a shorter period of time will not be acceptable. The bid shall be irrevocable for a period of 210 days. 
Q43) The RFQ states that the (Letter of Intent) LOI from a finance company must have successfully delivered at least three projects in the past five years. The RFP Bid Form requires 5 projects references and 3 of them must be with one of the financiers for which a letter of interest has been submitted. To confirm, does this mean that the references should include 3 projects that the finance company has successfully funded or do the 3 projects listed must  been completed by the prime and the finance company as a team? If the answer to the above question is yes, the 3 projects must be completed as a team (finance & prime); in the situation where a prime firm was prequalified,  in which 2 LOI’s were provided from finance companies where 3 projects have not been completed together as a team- would the prime firms RFP submittal be disqualified?    
A43) This requirement has been amended.  Please see the revised Exhibit B.4 –Experience Form v3 published in Addendum #2. 

Q44) Would the County accept a proposal from a Prime prequalified firm with a finance partner that wasn’t listed in the RFQ nor an LOI provided as long as the finance company meets the experience qualifications? Can additional financial partners from those listed in the pre-bid qualification submittal be submitted in response to the RFP?
A44) Yes, it is acceptable to submit a proposal from a Prime prequalified firm with a finance partner that wasn’t listed in the RFQ nor for whom an LOI was provided as long as the finance company meets the experience qualifications, and an explanation for the change in partner described in the RFQ is provided in the narrative..
Q45) Is the Prime prequalified firm required to use the same finance partner for all bundles?
A45) No, the Prime prequalified firm is not required to use the same finance partner for all bundles. 

Q46) Are bid bonds required on a per bundle basis or are they required for each separate city/county? Are bid bonds required from only the prime firm?  
A46) Bid Bonds are required from only the Prime firm and they are required for each separate Participating Agency.
Q47) Based on reviewing the individual participating agency sample contracts,  we have determined that the following cities/counties:  City of Cupertino, City of Mountain View, City of Menlo Park, City of Foster City, City of Redwood City, County of Alameda, UC Berkeley require Payment &Performance bonds. Should this cost be included in our price?
A47) Yes, all costs associated with development, procurement, maintenance and installation of the projects should be included in the offered price.
Q48) Will the 3 years of requested audited financials be kept confidential and returned after reviewed?  Can the county provide an NDA that can be executed prior to the proposal due date to ensure confidentiality of our companies financial?
A48) While bid documents are subject to public records request, the vendor may reasonably mark proprietary information as confidential.
Q49) When sizing the systems, should a utility rate switch be considered or should the system size be based off the recommended size provided coupled with available space?
A49) Utility rate switches should be considered. System sizes should be based on optimal load offsets without exceeding a site’s available space.
Q50) Please confirm the acceptance of submitting a sample PPA contract in lieu of the County of Alameda’s PPA and what, if any, impacts this may have on a Bidder.  In addition, would the County of Alameda please confirm the “Key Terms” to be included in a Bidder’s “sample PPA contract”. 
A50)  As stated in the RFP, it is preferable for bidders to use the standard PPA document, however it is acceptable for bidders to use their own documents as long as each of the Terms and Conditions as specified in this RFP are included.  All bidders must note exceptions to the standardized terms and conditions on Exhibit B.5A in all cases.  The “key terms” are highlighted in yellow in Exhibit E.1.
Q51) If bidders are required to bid on all projects within a bundle in order for the agencies to achieve economies of scale, are the agencies bound to award the entire bundle to a single bidder?  (It is understood that agencies have the right to eliminate or swap sites within a bundle, but bidders need to know whether their individual bid will be “cherry-picked” amongst bidders within the bundle.)
A51) An entire bundle will be awarded to one vendor, however the firms submitting bundle pricing should anticipate that there may be some sites within each bundle for which unforeseen conditions  or other factors exist which may result in the inability to proceed with an individual site or sites  as described.  Furthermore, Participating Agencies reserve the right to determine whether to accept the Recommendation for Award and pricing as submitted.  Therefore, bundle pricing as described in Exhibit B.2 – Bid Form should anticipate +/- 10% site movement within the bundle.  Firms will be obligated to guarantee bundle pricing. 

Q52) Can multiple bids (i.e. different layouts or technology) be submitted for specific sites within the same bundle (clarification of page 2 of Exhibit B.1, which is page 28 of the RFP PDF)? 
A52) Yes, multiple bids can be submitted for specific sites within the same bundle, however vendors should submit bids with the best overall value for Participating Agencies.
Q53) Can we bid on individual sites within BA1 without needing to bid the whole bundle? [Page 16 of the solicitation states “The Bid Alternate proposals will be evaluated on a “Best Value” and site-by-site basis.”]
A53) Qualified Firms may submit a bid for none, one, or more than one of the sites listed in the BA1 bundle.
Q54) Will our pre-qualification score be factored into the final decision?
A54) Prequalification Questionnaires were not “Scored”.  Those that passed were deemed qualified and those that did not qualify did not move forward in the RFP process.
Q55) Exhibit 7 of Exhibit E.1 PPA Template states that “The DAS shall meet all of the requirements of the California Solar Initiative (CSI) program…”  What are those requirements?  [Potential suppliers of the DAS refer to stations that meet CAISO requirements, but themselves seem not to know what CSI requirements are for the weather portion of the DAS.] 
A55) Please see Exhibit D.1, Section 3.5.19, for specific requirements for the DAS. 

Q56) Can DAS pyranometers be Class 2, or will they have to meet Class 1 or secondary status specifications (see ISO 9060 classifications)?
A56) All DAS pyranometers must be Class 1 or secondary status rated.
Q57) It is noted that RFP responses will be public documents.  Will that include the actual bid forms (PPA or cash acquisition values) without redaction?
A57) While bid documents are subject to public records request, the vendor may reasonably mark proprietary information as confidential.

Q58) It appears that the site overviews all presume central inverters.  Is there some prohibition to using string inverters, or is the reference to central inverters simply a design assumption by the R-REP consultant used for scoping the sites? 
A58) There are no prohibitions to proposing or using either string or central inverters.
Q59) It does not appear that there is any preferred schedule or CODs for the various projects.  Will the RFP be amended to give bidders guidance as to the desired COD for each project?
A59) The County does not have a schedule with milestone stated in the RFP, however R-REP Participating Agencies generally expect design to commence in the summer or early fall 2014 with construction to complete as soon as practicable thereafter. Vendors are to provide a milestone completion schedule that is realistic and timely.
Q60) The Pricing Submittal Forms contain input fields labeled “Group PPA Discount” and “Group Purchase Discount.” These fields are not explained in the RFP document. The Pricing Submittal Form states, ”Group Pricing Discounts for PPA and Purchase are optional, but requested, for each site in bundle when bidder is able to contract +/- 10% of recommended capacity per bundle.”  What does this mean and where is it explained?
A60) The bundle pricing (“Group Pricing Discounts”) is intended to reflect a discounted price given the economies of scale and reduced transaction costs associated with the collaborative procurement.  Although Participating Agencies have conducted site surveys and other due diligence, the Firms submitting bundle pricing should anticipate that there may be some sites within each bundle for which unforeseen conditions  or other factors exist which may result in the inability to proceed with an individual site or sites  as described.  Furthermore, Participating Agencies reserve the right to determine whether to accept the Recommendation for Award and pricing as submitted.  Therefore, bundle pricing as described in Exhibit B.2 – Bid Form should anticipate +/- 10% site movement within the bundle.  Firms will be obligated to guarantee bundle pricing. 

Q61) Why Plane-of-Array (POA) for the MPAs instead of Global Horizontal Irradiance (GHI)?

A61) Plane-of-Array (POA) irradiance sensors are required for monitoring and commissioning in order to enable linear regression comparisons between solar generation and simultaneous available irradiance on the modules as-installed.
ALAMEDA COUNTY SITE-SPECIFIC QUESTIONS
Santa Rita Jail

Q1) Where would the lay-down yard be?
A1) The lay-down areas for the Housing Units will be in a non-inmate area located in the back of the Housing Units.
Q2) What is the time loss expected to enter and exit the jail? 
A2) All vendor employees must pass a security clearance before gaining access to the site.  Once an employee has passed security clearance, access to the jail will be through a vendor’s service entrance in the back of the jail. 

Q3) What are the interconnection voltages, locations, and park limit?
A3) Inverters for existing PV systems at the jail have interconnected to either 480V electric panels throughout the jail or at one of the jail’s seven substations.  The incoming electrical voltage at the substations is at 12 KV and then stepped down to 480V in the substation.
Q4) Can a fixed tilt solution substitute the requested hillside tracker? Are there geotechnical reports available for the existing hillside solar tracking system at Santa Rita Jail?
A4) Due to unforeseen complications, the hillside tracker area #5 has been removed from this site.  An equivalent sized rooftop system is available on nine Housing Unit roofs.  Three of the roofs have already had their existing PV removed and six other are candidates for replacing the existing PV.  The electrical infrastructure for the existing PV on all nine Housing Units can be reused. 
Q5) Can you provide details on the disposition of the existing fuel cell at Santa Rita?  Will it remain in place or will it be decommissioned?  Will we be responsible to decommission and removal?  If the existing fuel cell is removed, can any of the existing infrastructure be reused?  Can you provide the current make and model of the existing fuel cell?

A5) The existing fuel cell is currently operating at 60% capacity and has not been reliable.  Vendors have the option of proposing a system that will generate a total capacity of 1.4 MW and decommission the existing fuel cell or supplementing the existing fuel cell with a new system, so that both systems will generate a total capacity of 1.4 MW.  If the existing fuel cell is replaced, the vendor is responsible for the removal and decommissioning of the existing fuel, and the existing infrastructure can be reused.  The existing fuel cell cogeneration plant model is a 1st generation DFC 1500, manufactured by Fuel Cell Energy.

Q6) Is the removal of the existing solar on the housing block roofs part of the scope of the project, or will that be completed separately? At Santa Rita Jail, the existing panels are being removed from some sections. On the site visit, the panels were already gone, but the base/rack structures remain.  Will those be removed in advance of the next projects or should bidders assume some cost of removal for these remaining components? While on site it was noted that there are a number of the rooftop systems that are in poor condition. Should our proposal consider replacing any of the existing systems? Should one assume that the old solar mounting hardware will be removed prior to the start of the project or is this a cost that should be included in one’s bid?
A6) Removal of any existing modules and/or backer boards on the roof of the housing units are part of the scope of the project.

Q7) Why are the existing panels being removed from the Santa Rita Jail Housing units? How old are those panels?
A7) The existing modules are over 13 years old and inefficient.  They are currently generating under 50% of expected production.
Q8) At Santa Rita Jail, many of the roofs will need some roofing work in advance of the next solar installation.  Should bidders assume cost of repairs into their proposal or will this be accounted for by the jail outside the scope of this RFP for solar? Regarding some of the rooftops at the jail, the conditions are sub-standard to install any solar array.  Will the County replace the roofs prior to developers gaining access to the site, or does the County wish that developers include re-roofing as part of the scope of work? If so can the County provide a spec for the requirements of the re-roofing? For the purposes of evaluating and normalizing submitted proposals, please provide an allowance amount that all bidders can include in their price for reroofing being this location would require the roof to be redone before solar is installed.
A8) Only roofing repairs within the footprint of the proposed array are the responsibility of the vendor.  Roofing under the existing modules is assumed to be in good condition.  Re-roofing costs are not part of the scope of the project unless otherwise noted on the site spec sheets.
Q9) Can you clearly identify which housing units are available to build on for the purposes of this RFP and mark them clearly on a site plan? 
A9) A new site specification sheet County of Alameda’s Santa Rita Jail, Site ID 15, Bundle L1, including housing unit numbers, is posted on the SFTP site (see Exhibit C.5B for instructions on how to access the SFTP site). 

Q10) The site spec points out that “care should be taken not to install more generation capacity than the minimum site demand since the site is currently not set up to net meter electricity back to PG&E”. Is there a specific capacity limit at this site? 
A10) With the replacement of the existing inverters, the jail should be eligible for net metering. 

Q11) Please confirm that the total for all the Santa Rita Jail sites cannot exceed 2,634kW-DC.
A11) The maximum site cap for generation is 5 MW, including all solar, wind, and fuel cells.  The site specification identifies locations for a maximum 1990 KW-DC system.
Q12) Should bidders account for any fees associated with an initial background check/security clearance for the on-site crew?
A12) There are no fees associated with the jail’s site security clearance process.
Q13) Will the County consider a submittal using an alternate, but technically and financially similar approach in lieu of fuel cells? 
A13) The County is requesting submittal of fuel cells only, in the fuel cell bundle. 

Q14) Will Authority Having Jurisdiction permit a 1000 volt DC system to be utilized?
A14) Systems utilizing 1000 volt DC system technologies are acceptable.
Q15) During the site walk, it was represented that solar was desired not only in the firing range parking areas, but also on the range itself.  However, the site description does not show any of this area being used.  What is desired in the way of solar for this subarea of the Santa Rita Jail project?
A15) The range area is not a part of the scope of work at this time.
Santa Rita Multiple Buildings
Q1) What are the interconnection voltages, locations, and park limit?  Is area 5 to remain a functioning parking lot (i.e. requiring elevated canopies) or can it be viewed as space for a conventional ground mount solution? Area 4 consists of several small pits with high berms around them.  While flat inside, the size restricts the effective deployment of solar and the berms would cause significant shading concerns.  Is it possible that these berms could be removed to create one contiguous flat open space or are they required for vehicular access up the hill? Sites 4 and 5 are very far from the proposed point of interconnection for the power.  This makes these potentially very expensive and inefficient systems to design.  Can bidders submit a response only utilizing areas 1-3 if we can get within a reasonable margin of the target system size on site?
A1) Please see the announcement on page 2 of this RFP.  Due to unforeseen complications with this site, the site has been removed from R-REP. Bidders should use the revised Exhibit B.2A -  Pricing Submittal Form (named “Exhibit B.2A - PRICING SUBMITTAL FORM - Bid Bundle L1 Final v2”) , which has been posted on the following web page under Bid Number RFP #901098
Martinelli Center

Q1) What are the interconnection voltages, locations, and park limit? Where will the interconnection for the ground mount system be taking place?
A1) Interconnection voltages for the rooftop system is at 480V.  Interconnection voltages for the ground-mounted system will be at the local utility grid voltage or lower and will be determined during the interconnection application process.
Q2) Does the boundary provided have to be the fence line or can bidder use what we want within the parcel boundary?

A2) The only known restrictions are the parcel boundaries, less the required setbacks. Bidders should propose the most optimal and feasible layout within the parcel boundary. 
Q3) How accurate is the site boundary as shown in the SFTP documents?  Can the County provide a more accurate boundary? Does the boundary provided have to be the fence line or can bidder use what we want within the parcel boundary?
A3) The site boundary on the SFTP site is the most accurate information available at this time.
Q4) Is it the County’s intent to own the community solar project? 
A4) This is not yet decided. The County will evaluate options for community solar at the site or development as part of PG&E’s RES-BCT program based upon the economics of the winning vendor’s proposal. 

Q5) Does the County of Alameda intend to organize and aggregate the energy customers for a community solar project or will it be the responsibility of the contractor to find subscribers for the energy? 
A5) The County has targeted some commercial affinity groups but in all likelihood the County would need assistance from the contractor in organizing and aggregating the energy customers for a community solar project.  The County is flexible in this regard depending on the proposal. The County has conceptualized several approaches and seeks a project from a Solar Power Development Team that would include Team members that would perform all aspects of the development through power and revenue generation including the required and desirable activities of permitting, PPA, other tasks and the formation of a community solar program and/or other program within which to operate. Overall the County would like to achieve the following goals at this site: Create a revenue stream to offset Martinelli Center and departmental management, maintenance, improvement and administrative costs; assist in reaching County goals in greenhouse gas reduction; provide a higher percentage of green power and lower cost energy alternative to those participating in the program; and create an expandable program where “subscribers” add their rooftops for solar improvements and thereby expand the program. The County seeks proposals with a range of alternatives to be provided to achieve the above program goals.
Q6) What is the preferred interconnection tariff where the solar plant output exceeds the existing service capacity?

A6) That has not been determined at this time.
Q7) Will AHJ permit a 1000 volt DC system to be utilized?

A7) Systems utilizing 1000 volt DC system technologies are acceptable.
Q8) The ground mount area depicted in the site description appears to correlate to the actual desired location, as was discussed on the job walk.  Could a more accurate map which includes the relevant property lines and offsets needed to be maintained be provided, as well as a topo with the desired build area depicted on it? 
A8) The County has provided the most accurate maps available. 
Q9)  How  should Bidders reflect proposals for the Martinelli Site (Ground Mount) under both RES-BCT and also under Community Solar?

A9) Proposer responses to the L1 bundle are required to include a pricing and financing mechanism for “Community Solar” development at the Martinelli site. This alternative financing is separate from, and in addition to, the PPA and Cash Acquisition pricing required for the site and all other sites in the bundle in Exhibit B.2A – Pricing Submittal Form (named “Exhibit B.2A - PRICING SUBMITTAL FORM - Bid Bundle L1 Final v2”). The narrative description of the Community Solar option at this site must be submitted as part of Proposal Sub-Section 9.f. - Financing Methodologies. As required in that Sub-Section, the discussion must include indicative metrics, examples of similar successful financings, and an overview of implementation and financing considerations. All relevant assumptions must be clearly identified and explained. Bidders on the Martinelli site should also address the community solar proposal in Section 7, Description of the Proposed Project Approach.
ALCO Park

Q1) Will AHJ permit a 1000 volt DC system to be utilized?

A1) Systems utilizing 1000 volt DC system technologies are acceptable.
Q2) What construction safety precautions will be imposed to protect street and parking lot inhabitants for the installation of the carports (netting, scaffolding, blockage of sidewalks during installation, etc…)? 
A2) The vendor will be required to submit a safety plan for review by the County during the design process. 

JACKSON CENTER

Q1) Will AHJ permit a 1000 volt DC system to be utilized?

A1) Systems utilizing 1000 volt DC system technologies are acceptable.

Q2) The site description says that the offered roof is concrete: “The garage roof is suitable for PV installation. The height of the roof is approximately 14 feet from the ground. The roofing material is a flat gravel floor on top of a concrete structure. Loading will not be an issue.”  Is this accurate?  [The roof, although not accessible on the tour, was walked underneath and appeared to be corrugated metal supported by metal beams, not concrete, and its ability to support load or penetrations not confirmable.] 
A2) A structural analysis is the responsibility of the vendor, as part of the design process. 

HAYWARD (WINTON) LANDFILL

Q1) Specification sheet mentions 5MW DC, did you mean AC, (instead of DC) because that is the limit for RES-BCT?

A1) The maximum size of the system will be at RES-BCT limitation.
Q2) Why are there three different sites in the landfill?  Why not one large solution (covering all of the land)? 
A2) The identified sites at the landfill were based on the existing topography of the site.   

Q3) Can the arrays be consolidated onto one?

A3) It will be acceptable for a developer to consolidate the entire array onto one.
Q4) Near section 1, will the low points be elevated (filled) to even the land?  Will low array spots be filled? There was some discussion during the job walk that the site may be graded prior to being made available to a developer. Please provide further information regarding any plans that the county has regarding grading of the site and the conditions that we should assume.  Can the County please provide more information regarding the proposed grade and any plans for developers to make assumptions on array placement? Please confirm that the site will be graded into one level site. If so, please provide site boundaries and timeframe on completion of grading.  What will the final grade be? The site description splits the areas into 3 sections.  Can earth be moved so as to provide a unified, single layout for the entire array footprint with a perimeter and inverter access road rather than the current meandering roads between the 3 proposed project areas? The site specification document mentions 20 feet of "settlement dirt".  Can the County provide more detailed information on this material and the method it was deposited and any compaction? How far down from the surface can cuts be made to provide a uniform surface for the location?
A4) The solar designated areas are to be assumed in an as-is condition.  There is currently more than 20 feet of fill atop the landfill.  It is the responsibility of the developer to grade this area, as needed, for the proposed array.  All grading must conform to the Landfill’s Site Closure Plan, Grading Plan, and Storm Water Pollution Prevention plan.  These documents are posted on the SFTP site.   

Q5) Is there a recent topo of the land?

A5) A topographical map is posted on the SFTP site (see Exhibit C.5B for instructions on how to access the SFTP site).
Q6) Are the roads shown permanent?
A6) There are currently no plans to change the dirt roads on the site. 

Q7) Has a settlement forecast been completed? Differential settlement anticipation?
A7) There is no known settlement forecast or differential settlement anticipated.
Q8) Is the site producing methane? Location of landfill gas operations? Need to site safe distance from.  Where is the oldest part of the landfill? Are there specific areas with inorganic waste (construction debris)? Foundation selection needs to be mindful of not creating preferential pathways for gas and leachate systems, thus changing the water balance of the landfill. What are the weight bearing capabilities not just of cap, but of leachate and gas systems? Are there any vent pipes and if so where are they located?
A8) There are no known methane or landfill gas operations on the site.  It is reported that only clean fill was allowed at the landfill. Bidders will have responsibility for conducting appropriate due diligence. It will be the responsibility of the developer to conduct a geotech investigation, prior to the design of any system.
Q9) Can unplanned maintenance be done at night?
A9) There are no anticipated restrictions for unplanned maintenance. 

Q10) Is the City of Hayward or the County of Alameda Flood Plain District seen as the potential candidate for the RES-BCT system? 
A10) The County of Alameda, including the Flood District, will be the recipients of the power generated though PG&E’s RES-BCT tariff. 

Q11) The project description that was provided as part of the RFP shows three distinct locations that are available for this project. These locations were likely selected because they are relatively level. However, it appears that there is more land that could be available. Please provide an outline of the project boundaries.
A11) Please refer to the site specification for the project boundaries. Site spec sheets can found in Exhibit C.2, and are available on the R-REP FTP site (See Exhibit C.5A for instructions on how to access the FTP Site)
Q12) Will the County allow penetrating racking systems at this site?
A12) There are no restrictions against penetrating racking system.
Q13) It states in Exhibit C that the geotech report for the site has been requested.  When will the geotech report be ready and available for the bidders to view?  We would like to make sure there is ample time to review the geotech and prepare a proposal that meets the site criteria.  Additionally, is there a weight limit or weight concern when installing on the landfill?  We have experienced this issue on other sites.  Please confirm.
A13) A geotech report has not been developed for the solar designated area.  It will be the responsibility of the developer to conduct a geotech investigation, prior to the design of any system.
Q14) What are the interconnection voltages, locations, and park limit?
A14) There is currently no electrical service to the site, although there are transmission lines nearby. 

Q15) Is there information regarding settlement history on various areas of the landfill, especially within the 3 sites designated by the County? 
A15) We do not have any history on settlement, but some settlement did occur during the Loma Prieta earthquake in 1989. 

Q16) Is there information regarding the landfill cap?
A16) The landfill cap information is in the Capping Plan on the SFTP site (see Exhibit C.5B for instructions on how to access the SFTP site).
Q17) Can the mounting structure be anything other than ballasted?
A17) There are no mounting structure limitations for this site. 

Q18) As the site is adjacent to the San Francisco Bay, is there any information regarding environmental restrictions/concerns?
A18) There are no known environmental restrictions/concerns for this site. It will be the responsibility of the developer to conduct due diligence, prior to the design of any system.
Q19) Was the site previously a wetland and if so is there any information regarding how it has been built up? 
A19) The site is not, nor was it at any time, considered a wetland.
Q20) The site specification document mentions that developers may go as deep as 10 feet without concern to place conduit.  Please also provide assumptions for developers on how far we may go down for the purpose of foundations (driven piles, etc.), and any restrictions on such penetrations. 
A20) There are currently no known restrictions on the depth of foundation penetrations. It will be the responsibility of the developer to conduct due diligence, prior to the design of any system.
Q21) When will the site be ready for developers to start construction?
A21) There are currently no restrictions to start construction in the designated solar areas. It will be the responsibility of the developer to conduct due diligence, prior to the design of any system.
Q22) Will a single-axis tracking solution be acceptable to the County, or are developers instructed to stay with a fixed-tilt solution?
A22) There are no restrictions on the type of ground-mounted technologies to be used at this site.
Q23) Is there a weight limit or weight concern when installing on the landfill?  We have experienced this issue on other sites.  Please confirm. 
A23) The County is unaware of any weight restrictions or concerns. It will be the responsibility of the developer to conduct due diligence, prior to the design of any system.
Q24) What is the preferred interconnection tariff where the solar plant output exceeds the existing service capacity?
A24) The County facilities that will be utilizing the solar generation have ample capacity to accept the peak generation power of the system. 

Q25) Will AHJ permit a 1,000 volt DC system to be utilized?
A25) There are not restrictions on the type of DC system technologies to be utilized at this site 

Q26) What is the line voltage of the two power lines adjacent to the site?
A26) This information is not known at this time. 

Q27) Has the County made any interconnection applications to PG&E?  If so, when, and what’s the queue number and status? 
A27) The interconnection applications are the responsibility of the developer. 

Q28) Will the County take any cost and schedule risk for the proposed interconnection application?
A28) No.  This is the responsibility of the developer. 

Q29) What are the required offsets from the property lines to the south and west?
A29) There are no known restrictions at this time.
Q30) Are there any restrictions as to fencing or landscape requirements for the south and west borders beyond what is in the Exhibit B? 
A30) There are no known restrictions at this time. 

Q31) What are the Buyer’s responsibilities as to providing security monitoring for the site?
A31) Under a PPA arrangement, it is not the responsibility of the County to provide security monitoring.
Q32) Is the Seller at risk for damage and loss due to theft and/or vandalism beyond Seller negligence?
A32) Under a PPA arrangement, as the owner of the system, risk of damage and loss due to theft and/or vandalism is the Sellers. 

Q33) There were no additional files in the ftp source for this project.  Is that an oversight?  Will any be forthcoming? 
A33) A topographical map of the landfill, a boundary map, the Site Closure Plan are posted on the SFTP site (see Exhibit C.5B for instructions on how to access the SFTP site).  

City of Cupertino Site Specific Questions

Corp Yard

Q1) How can we route through the Loc and Storage Center?

A1) With regard to service to the bridge site from the City of Cupertino Service Center, the expectation is that the routing would go within the street right-of-way and not through the storage center property, which is private property. 

City of Fremont Site Specific Questions

Police Station

Q1) Can you define "secured parking lot"?

A1) “Secured parking lot” in this case means that the parking lot is fenced off from public access, and that entry is controlled by the Police Department through an electronic gate.

Q2) The lightpoles in the parking lots will need to come down in order to put carports in. Do the concrete bases need to be removed as well or can they be left in?

A2) They should be removed as per the following specifications:  remove all wire back to the panel. Put a Christy box at the location of the removed concrete base and turn the abandoned conduit up into the Christy box. In the panel on conduit feeding the lights and on the end in the Christy boxes attach a note on a metal tag that the conduit was abandoned due to elimination of the light poles to construct the carport. On both ends of the conduit, include locations where the conduit terminates.
Q3) The carport in area 11 is not currently shown covering the handicapped parking in that area. Should that carport be extended to cover the handicapped spots?

A3) Area 11 should include the handicapped parking (the entire east parking stalls on the west side of the main Police Department building).

City of Menlo Park Site Specific Questions

Family Center/Gymnasium

Q1) Is there a recommended inverter location for this site? Site Sheets specified the parking lot next to the police station for an inverter, where is this located?

A1) There are two possible locations for an inverter. One is inside the large electrical room in the gymnastics center. This room is not a conditioned space, and was viewed during the site walk. Another location is the lower parking lot of the police station, which has a couple of locations for an inverter. One being near a picnic area and the other in a covered outdoor space. Currently there is a generator in the covered location, but it will be moved next year. Photos are available on the SFTP site under the City of Menlo Park – Family Center/Gymnasium. (See Exhibit C.5B for instructions on how to access the SFTP site).
Q2) Can you submit pictures of the electrical meters/stickers/plates in the building that we couldn't have access to because the children were sleeping in that building during our site visit? 

A2) The electrical panel at the modular building (which was inaccessible during the site walk) is unavailable for solar interconnection, as it connects to a different meter (library) than that which has been considered for the site, which is the administration building meter that the gymnastics center is connected to. The closest alternative point of interconnection is at a sub-panel in the Child Care Center, which is adjacent to the modular building. This panel connects to the meter in the administration building (police station) that was observed during the site walk. Photos of this electrical panel are attached. 

Q3) Will the option to remove trees from the parking lot for additional carport space be considered?
A3) Not if the tree is a heritage tree, which is defined by the City to be any tree that has a trunk with a circumference of 47.1 inches (diameter of fifteen (15) inches) or more. If it is a native oak species, then the threshold is more stringent with a trunk circumference of 31.4 inches (diameter of ten (10) inches) or more. Many, if not all, of the trees at the site would be considered heritage tree size.
City of Oakland Site Specific Questions
Municipal Service Center

Q1) Will the lights have to go down in the parking lot?

A1) No, the lights cannot be removed as they are needed for area driving lighting.  The Contractor can move these lights, but must assure that the area driving lighting requirements are maintained.
Q2) Are there any “as-builts” underground electricals? 
A2) A utility site plan for the MSC, dated 1970, has been uploaded into the SFTP (see Exhibit C.5B for instructions on how to access the SFTP site).  Please be advised that this utility site plan does not show other utility work beyond 1970. 

Q3) What is the tie-in point?

A3) The tie-in point is the Building 911 electrical room.

Q4) On the parking lot closest to Edgewater Drive, will this be a tandem T canopy?

A4) No, the array closest to Edgewater drive is a single array. 

Q5) What is the expected height of the carports to accommodate 14’ 6” vehicles? 
A5) Our tallest vehicles are almost 14’ so a 14’-6” clearance for arrays 1,4,5,6 and 7 will suffice.  Arrays 2 and 3 should have a 10’-0” clearance. 

Q6) Can you provide more up to date single line drawings for the site?

A6) Additional single-line drawings have been made available on the SFTP (see Exhibit C.5B for instructions on how to access the SFTP site).
Q7) Provided drawings for MSC indicate a 480 v service on site (in addition to the 208 service) while what we saw at the 11/22 site walk was a utility meter/tie in point at a 1200 amp service at 120/208.  Does this 480 service exist and is it available for interconnection?
A7) No, the 911 building primary voltage is serviced from PG&E’s 12 kilo-volt line and the transformer’s secondary voltage for the 911 building is 120/208 volts. 

Q8) Will AHJ permit a 1000 volt DC system to be utilized?
A8) At this time, the permitting requirements for 1,000VDC systems are unclear. Should Bidders want to submit a 1,000VDC system, they should submit it as an additional alternative system.
Tassafaronga Recreation Center

Q1) Based upon the site overview, these buildings appear to be three separate structures with one central distribution panel in the easternmost building; there is also discussion of subpanels in the westernmost building.  If we choose to tie directly into the main panel from the westernmost building (for example), are we to assume a raceway exists between buildings?  If not, are we to assume trenching?

A1) There are two separate structures; the gym and the recreation center.  There is no raceway between these structures, so the contractor will have to trench.

City of Richmond Site Specific Questions
Civic Auditorium

Q1) What drives the pistons?

A1) The pistons at the Civic Auditorium are hydraulically driven.

Q2) Is power fed by a generator? 
A2) Generator power is only used during grid outages. Generators are separated from the utility by Automatic Transfer Switches. The Auditorium has its own small generator that supplies power to emergency lights and exit lights throughout the building only (during a grid outage). 

Q3) What happens if the power goes out?

A3) Generators kick on to provide power to emergency loads.

Q4) Can you provide photos of the electrical boxes and stickers for the Memorial Auditorium and the Civic Center Plaza: main panels; main breaker; name plate; voltages and ratings; and meter?
A4) Photos have been made available on the SFTP under the City of Richmond – Civic center Auditorium. (See Exhibit C.5B for instructions on how to access the SFTP site).

Q5) Array 8 in the parking lot is split between the civic center and the dispatch center. How many kW exactly are needed for the dispatch center? 
A5) Please see the site spec sheet in Exhibit C.2 on the FTP site (see Exhibit C.5A for instructions on how to access the FTP site) for additional information on this site.

Q6) Where are the underground PG&E lines located, and what voltage are they?

A6) Exact locations of underground PG&E lines are unavailable at the present time, and will need to be located and marked by professional line locators prior to underground work at the site. The line voltage is 12.5 kV or higher.

Contra Costa County Site Specific Questions

Coroner and Forensics Science Center

Q1) Are the electrical systems tied together or are they individual systems?
A1) Each building has its own electrical system.
Q2) How old are the buildings? 
A2) The buildings were built in the 1980's. 

Q3) Can we lose (take out) the trees?
A3) Based on our site assessment locations of the parking structures, the County has anticipated some tree trimming and removal.  Tree trimming or removal will have to be reviewed on a case by case basis especially if parking structures are to be located in alternate areas to those indicated on the site assessments.
Q4) If this (the parking lot) is to be restriped, how would we determine the array/canopy? 
A4) We assume the vendor/bidder would propose a re-striping plan to better suit the location and orientation of solar panels. 

Q5) Is there phone service/communication interface (for monitoring the systems)?
A5) Yes. Phone/communications service is available.
Q6) Is restriping the parking lot where array 4 and 9 are located an option? It would allow the carports to be facing south instead of east or west.
A6) Yes, the County is open to re-striping the parking lot. Any re-striping would have to be approved by the County and minimally impact parking capacity. 

San Mateo County Site Specific Questions

SMMC

Q1) Will all cables be run through the wide ducting on the Clinic Building roof?

A1) It is preferred that all cables be run through the wide ducting, but not required.
Q2) Are the supports on top of the Nursing Wing for a future floor (expansion)? 
A1) 
Currently, there are no plans for any expansion. It may never happen.
Q3) How would we handle the trees in the parking lot (for the main entrance)?
A3)
It is probable we’ll remove the trees that are completely inside our parking lot.
Q4) Can trees be removed to reduce shading in the parking lots?
A4)
It is a possibility if the tree is located completely inside the parking lot. The tress likely cannot be removed if the trees are shared with the City or belong to the City of San Mateo. (Example trees on Hacienda Street).
Q5) For the parking lot at the southeastern edge of the property, can the trees in the middle of the parking rows be removed? 
A5) Yes the trees in the middle of the parking rows can be removed in the parking lot at the southeastern edge of the property.
Q6) If deemed suitable, can we proposed solar at the parking lot to the Southside of the main hospital facility?
A6) Yes. If deemed suitable, vendors can propose solar at the parking lot to the Southside of the main hospital facility.
Q7) What are the interconnection voltages, locations, and park limit?
A7) The main utility source is 12Kv and stepped down to 480 at each building. There is no limit on parking.
Q8) Notes mention some structures only need to be 11ft while others need to be 15ft to avoid tree shading. Upon review of the sketches it doesn't appear that you are spacing the carports father apart, so there is a potential for inter-row shading that doesn't seem to be taken into account, please opine.
A8) This is a preliminary observation/recommendation; during design the layout and height of carports for minimal shading will be finalized.
Q9) There will either be shading losses on some of the roof areas under consideration or the capacity will be reduced fairly significantly. In order to take these shading losses into account correctly a site survey needs to be undertaken.  Will the bidder get a chance to revisit the design assumptions and revise production and PPA calculations once short listed or chosen for a specific site/portfolio? 
A9) Yes, the bidder get a chance to revisit the design assumptions and revise production and PPA calculations once short listed or chosen for a specific site/portfolio.
Q10) Is this location subject to Office of Statewide Health Planning and Development (OSHPD)? If so, what level of OSHPD is applicable for this site?
A10) Yes. There will be a Full Review. 
Q11) Will AHJ permit a 1000 volt DC system to be utilized?
A11) It will be a question for the Office of Statewide Health Planning and Development.
Q12) There are what appear to be footings for further floor expansion (upwards) for the Nursing Wing roof.  Is there any plan to indeed use these footings, and would that not preclude the use of this site for a roof top install?  Or, does the bidder have the assurance that a 20 year PPA for this site will actually run its term? 
A12) Currently, there are no plans for any roof expansion. It may never happen.
Q13) The roof of the Health Services building seemed quite old and in need of repair or strengthening.  Is any such action planned? In what time frame will the HS roof be repaired?
A13) No plans. The roof is 10 years old.
Q14) Will a rooftop install on such an old building have a firm chance of running its 20 year term?
A14) Yes. 

Q15) Is there any laydown point for storage of materials to be offered on the site?
A15) It will depend on the size and location. Most likely it can be accommodated.
UC Berkeley Site Specific Questions

University Village

Q1) Is 1000VDC permitted for carports or does it have to be 600VDC?

A1) At this time, the permitting requirements for 1,000VDC systems are unclear. Should Bidders want to submit a 1,000VDC system, they should submit it as an additional alternative system.

Q2) Can you provide photos of the primary meter, the name plates voltage/ratings, main breaker, sub breakers and all primary equipment? 
A2) No. Photos are not available for this site. 

Q3) What are the interconnection voltages, locations, and park limit?

A3) Please refer to the electric plans for University Village on the SFTP site (see Exhibit C.5B for instructions on how to access the SFTP site) for potential interconnection voltages and locations. Bidders should scope the project so that there are no parking losses.

Q4) Due to the proximity of the buildings to the east there will be some shading losses contrary to the Site Spec PDF statement.

A4) Bidders' best judgment should be used to provide the Agencies a best value solution. The bidder can propose modifications to the RFP request. Please include a narrative rationale for the change in your proposal.

Q5) There appear to be some light poles in the middle of the proposed carport areas.  Can bidder assume that these will be removed and under-lighting will be installed? 
A5) The University has standards for the type, quality, and the lighting levels of exterior lighting.  The University can work with the vendor to maximize the effectiveness of the carport installations while maintaining lighting requirements.  The preference will be to keep poles in place.

Q6) Can the field in the northwest corner of the site be used for a construction laydown yard? If not, is there an alternate location for contractors to use?
A6) The University will provide a construction staging area for the vendor.
Q7) Does the construction need to be done in phases to allow sections of parking to remain open for residents?
A7)  The University has not yet determined the work schedule for this site, however it will work with vendor and residents to minimize impacts for both. 

Q8) Due to poor weather conditions during the job walk, clear photos of the job site and electrical equipment could not be obtained. Can the county provide bidders with pictures of the site and the electrical equipment?
A8) No. Photos are not available for this site. For other details on the site, please refer to the site spec sheet in Exhibit C.2 on the R-REP FTP site (See Exhibit C.5A for instructions on how to access the FTP Site).
Q9) Does Buyer have any special aesthetic or functional requirements (drip intercepts between modules, tube steel versus angle) for carports? 
A9) There will likely be aesthetic considerations for this site, however they have not yet been determined. Vendors will be expected to comply with the University’s aesthetic or functional requirements upon award.
Recreational Sport Facility

Q1) Can you provide photos for prospective interconnection point: meter; breaker; name plate; existing breakerloads?
A1) No. Photos are not available for this site. For other details on the site, please refer to the site spec sheet in Exhibit C.2 on the R-REP FTP site (See Exhibit C.5A for instructions on how to access the FTP Site).
Q2) Where would the connection be made? 

A2) Electrical connection room - high voltage room, located in parking garage in south east corner.  Conduit to be run from roof to room. Vendor to provide a switch or breaker with a visible disconnect with lock out/tag out device.  This needs to be located in the same room as the main circuit breaker in the high voltage room. Solar system to be tied in downstream from the main circuit breaker. Voltage: 480/277 volts (note: this varies building by building on campus sites). 3 Phase; 4 Wire. 750 KVA transformer rating. Solar system should not generate more KW than building load (no power back to main system). Vendor to provide directional/safety signing in electric room:  instructing electricians of the two electrical systems, and how to use disconnect systems. Vendor to provide meter for solar output that connects to campus Obvius system. Additional metering information can be found in campus construction guidance documents:  http://www.cp.berkeley.edu/CDS_ucb/SR-10.pdf
 

Q3) Can you provide photos of: main campus meter; panel space; interconnection voltage/wattage? 
A3) No. Photos are not available. For other details on the site, please refer to the site spec sheet in Exhibit C.2 on the R-REP FTP site (See Exhibit C.5A for instructions on how to access the FTP Site).
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EXHIBIT C
VENDOR LIST

RFP No. 901098 – R-REP

Below is the Vendor Bid List for this project consisting of vendors who have responded to RFI No. 901098, and/or been issued a copy of this RFP.  This Vendor Bid List is being provided for informational purposes. 

This RFP Addendum is being issued to all vendors on the Vendor Bid List; the following revised vendor list includes contact information for each vendor attendee at the Networking/Bidders Conferences.
	RFP No. 901098 - R-REP

	Business Name
	Contact Name
	Phone
	Address
	City
	St
	Email

	510 Solar
	Nate Blumenkrantz
	510-289-6677
	1428 Madison Street #311
	Oakland
	CA
	nate@510solar.com

	A123 Systems, LLC
	Rick Johnson
	636-534-3129
	17889 Chesterfield Airport Rd
	Chesterfield,
	MO
	rickjohnson@a123systems.com

	AEKO Consulting, Inc.
	Gboyega Aladegbami
	510-763-2356 x13
	1939 Harrison St, Ste 420
	Oakland,
	CA
	Gboyega@aeko.com

	aItergy systems
	Mickey Oros
	916-458-8567
	140 Blue Ravine Road
	Folsom
	CA
	mickey.oros@altergy.com

	Alameda Electrical Distributors
	Mike Snow
	707-386-5669
	2420 Blanding Ave
	Alameda,
	CA
	msnow@alamedaelectric.com

	Alameda Electrical Distributors and California Service Tool
	Anne Donathan
	510-566-2954
	2420 Blanding Ave
	Alameda 
	CA
	ADonathan@alamedaelectric.com

	Allana Buick & Bers Inc.
	Tom Ball
	650-223-6737
	990 Commercial St
	Palo Alto
	CA
	tball@abbae.com

	Allana Buick and Bers
	Khatidga Khalfan
	650-543-5600
	990 Commercial Street
	Palo Alto
	CA
	marketing@abbae.com

	Allana, Buick and Bers
	Khatidja Khalfan
	650-543-5600
	990 Commercial Street
	Palo Alto
	CA
	bd@abbae.com

	Alternative Energy Development Group, LLC
	Chris Fraga
	610-909-8067
	The Radnor Corporate Ctr, 100 Matsonford Rd, Bldg 2, Ste 410
	Radnor
	PA
	cfraga@aedgonline.com

	Alternative Energy Systems Inc.
	Amber Ruz
	530-345-6980
	PO Box 9231
	Chico
	CA
	amber@solarenergyforlife.com

	AMSOLAR International
	Jared Quient
	760-480-7460
	420 Stevens Ave. Suite 160
	Solana Beach
	CA
	jared@amsolarcorp.com

	Apex Solar
	Farrel Williams
	408 782-0706
	6797 Croy Rd
	Morgan Hill
	CA
	Farrel@apxsolar.com

	ATI Architects and Engineers
	Paul DiDonato
	925-648-8800
	3860 Blackhawk Road
	Danville,
	CA
	pdidonato@atiae.com

	Bloom Energy Corporation
	Ivor Castelino
	408-534-1098
	1299 Orleans Drive
	Sunnyvale
	CA
	lvor.Castelino@bloomenergy.com

	Bloom Energy Corporation
	Mike Fuss
	408-543-1608
	1299 Orleans Drive
	Sunnyvale
	CA
	Mike.Fuss@bloomenergy.com

	Bloom Energy Corporation
	Lana Gee
	408 5431709
	1252 Orleans Drive
	Sunnyvale
	CA
	lgee@bloomenergy.com

	Bloom Energy Corporation
	Pete Henderson
	408 543 1072 
	1299 Orleans Drive
	Sunnyvale
	CA
	Peter.Henderson@bloomenergy.com

	Bloom Energy Corporation
	Ed Lieberman
	408-543-1540
	1252 Orleans Drive
	Sunnyvale
	CA
	elieberman@bloomenergy.com

	Bloom Energy Corporation
	Alexandra Moser
	408-543-1181
	1299 Orleans Drive
	Sunnyvale
	CA
	Alexandra.Moser@bloomenergy.com

	Borrego Solar Services, Inc.
	Matti Hirpa
	540-496-8744
	360 22nd Street, Suite 600
	Oakland
	CA
	mhirpa@borregosolar.com

	Borrego Solar Systems, Inc.
	Jim  Brennan
	510-496-8718
	360 22nd Street, Suite 600
	Oakland
	CA
	dpotovsky@borregosolar.com

	Burnham Energy, Inc.
	Greg Sellers
	408-603-9660
	4 North Second St.. Suite 625
	San Jose
	CA
	gsellers@burnhamenergy.com

	California Solar Energy Industries Association
	Kelsea  Jones
	916-228-4567
	1107 9th Street, Suite 820 
	Sacramento
	CA
	kjones@calseia.org

	California Solar Innovators Inc.
	Jordan Jones
	209-596-0350 
	 
	 
	 
	jordan@californiasolarinnovators.com

	CE2 CORPORATION
	CLYDE R. Wong
	925-463-7301
	6140 Stoneridge Mall Rd. Ste. 500+D179
	Pleasanton
	CA
	info@ce2corp.com

	CED Greentech
	jan Halasz
	510-352-8460
	1906 Republic Ave.
	San Leandro
	CA
	janh@greentechsl.com

	CH2MHill
	Heather Abrams
	(510) 698-2707
	 
	Oakland
	CA
	Heather.Abrams@ch2m.com

	Clark Strategic Partners
	Woodrow Clark
	310-858-6886
	PO Box #17975
	Beverly Hills
	CA
	wwclark13@gmail.com

	CleanFocus Energy, Inc.
	Philip Mickelson
	415-729-5575
	500 Sansome St. Suite 510
	San Francisco
	CA
	phil@cleanfocusenergy.com

	Complete Solar Solution
	Mark Harnett
	877-299-4943
	1065 East Hillsdale Blvd. Suite 308
	Foster City
	CA
	mharnett@completesolar.com

	Coneybeare
	Victoria Betancourt
	714-547-8546
	2003 N Broadway
	Santa Ana
	CA
	vicky@coneybeare.com

	Constellation
	Zeb Wallace
	310-248-0005
	50 Oak Court, Suite 120
	Danville,
	CA
	zeb.wallace@constellation.com

	Continental Merchandisers, Inc.
	Jodie Garcia
	651-224-4000 x2012
	273 Lafayette Road S.
	St.Paul
	MN
	JodyG@repcmi.com

	Cool Earth Solar, Inc.
	Tony Chen
	925-454-8506
	4659 Las Positas Rd.
	Livermore
	CA
	tchen@coolearthsolar.com

	Coronal Management, LLC
	Jonathan Jaffrey
	855-267-6625
	260 South Los Robles, Suite 104
	Pasadena,
	CA
	jdj@coronalmanagement.com

	Corporate Translations, Inc.
	Richard Gronbach
	310-376-1400
	1300 Aviation Boulevard
	Redondo Beach
	CA
	rwg@CorporateTranslations.com

	Cupertino Electric Inc.
	Paul Aggarwal
	408-808-8000
	1132 North Seventh Street
	San Jose
	CA
	Paul_Aggarwal@cei.com

	Cupertino Electric Inc.
	Janet Clark
	 
	 
	 
	 
	Janet Clark@cei.com

	Cupertino Electric Inc.
	Christina Hatzistratis
	408-808-8212
	1132 North Seventh St.
	San Jose
	CA
	christina_hatzistratis@cei.com

	Desert Solar Inc dba DS Energy Solutions
	Jim Emery
	760-240-3888
	19153 Town Center Dr Suite 102
	Apple Valley
	CA
	jim@dsenergysolutions.com

	Direct Energy
	Lance  Henderson
	403-776-2178
	Suite 1200 525 8 Ave SW
	Calgary
	AB
	Lance.Henderson@directenergy.com

	Duggwood Enterprises, Inc.
	Andrea Fullwood
	 
	 
	 
	 
	duggwoodenterprises@gmail.com

	Ecoplexus
	Sasha Josephs
	415-626-1802
	650 Townsend St. Suite 310
	San Francisco
	CA
	sjosephs@ecoplexus.com

	Ecoplexus
	Erik Stuebe
	415-626-1802
	650 Townsend Street, Suite 310
	San Francisco
	CA
	eriks@ecoplexus.com

	EDF Renewable Energy
	Nader  Jandaghi
	858-521-3581
	4000 Executive Pkwy, Ste 100
	San Ramon
	CA
	nader.jandaghi@edf-re.com

	EDF Renewable Energy
	Nader Jandaghi
	858-521-3581
	15445 Innovation Drive 
	San Diego
	CA
	nader.jandaghi@edf-re.com

	Enernoc, Inc.
	Douglas Chamberlin
	925-826-1602
	500 Ygnacio Valley Rd.,Ste 450
	Walnut Creek
	CA
	dchamberlin@enernoc.com

	Enerparc, Inc
	Sandra Liu
	415-671-6203
	4 Embarcadero Center
	San Francisco
	CA
	s.liu@enerparc.us

	Enfinity America Corporation
	Robin Park
	424-238-4470
	2500 Broadway, Suite F-125
	Santa Monica
	CA
	rpark@enfinitycorp.com

	ergSol
	Monica Weiss
	510-868-1730
	10033 Broadway Terrace
	Oakland
	CA
	mweiss@ergsol.com

	ergSol, Inc.
	Don Rodes
	916-496-8186
	10333 Broadway Terrace
	Oakland
	CA
	drodes@ergsol.com

	Everyday Solar
	Chris Sherring
	609 240 4179
	3 Bellaire Drive
	Princeton
	NJ
	csherring@comcast.net

	Everyday Solar
	Dr. Chris Sherring
	609-240-4179
	3 Bellaire Drive
	Princeton
	NJ
	csherring@comcast.net

	Focal Point Energy
	Taber Smith
	408-923-1541
	1650 Las Plumas Ave. Suite C
	San Jose
	CA
	taber@focalpointenergy.com

	Focal Point Energy, Inc.
	Richard Tetschlag
	408-896-6224
	1650 Las Plumas Ave. Ste C
	San Jose
	CA
	dick@focalpointenergy.com

	Free Hot Water
	Tor Valenza
	310-251-2763
	 
	 
	 
	tor@freehotwater.com

	Freehotwater Solar Therma Solutions
	Paul  Burrowes
	408-432-9900
	2146 Bering Drive 
	San Jose
	CA
	paul@freehotwater.com

	FuelCell Energy, Inc.
	Pere Margalef, PhD
	949-599-8637
	 
	 
	 
	pmargalef@fce.com

	FuelCell Energy, Inc
	Trevor Rodd
	925-303-0016
	8 Scenic Court
	Danville
	CA
	trodd@fce.com

	FuelCell Energy, Inc.
	Robert Keefrider
	203-830-5705
	3 Great Pasture Road
	Danbury
	CT
	rkeefrider@fce.com

	FuelCell Energy, Inc.
	Chris Pais
	925-979-1602
	1150 Lincoln Avenue
	Walnut Creek
	CA
	cpais@fce.com

	Gen-X Energy Development LLC
	Fred Brown
	510-410-4917
	831 Longridge Road
	Oakland,
	CA
	fred.brown@gen-xenergydevelopment.com

	Global Energy Partners
	Claire Curtin
	925-482-2000
	500 Ygnacio Valley Rd., Suite 450
	Walnut Creek
	CA
	ccurtin@gepllc.com

	Greensleeves Energy Solutions
	John Scorsone
	937-286-1149
	1995 Tiffin Ave. Suite 312
	Findlay
	OH
	JScorsone@greensleevesllc.com

	Hamilton Solar LLC
	Matthew Weinberger
	702-303-4446
	8995 Terabyte Dr.
	Reno,
	NV,
	mweinberger@hamiltonsolarusa.com

	Hangzhou Photovoltaic Association
	Carol Zhao
	571-873-82355
	Room 1101, Library Information Building C
	Zhejiang University 
Hangzhou
	Zhejiang 
Province
	Carol.Zhao@zii-china.org

	Hanwha Q CELLS USA
	Brian Lynch
	310-750-7796
	8001 Irvine Center Drive Suite 1250
	Irvine
	CA
	brian.lynch@hqamericas.com

	Hanwha SolarOne U.S.A. Inc.
	George Gisel
	760-342-8168
	5163 Wisteria Dr, Ste 100
	Oceanside
	CA
	us.sales@hanwha-solarone.com

	HelioPower
	Nick Weber
	760-377-6460
	612 Howard Street, Suite 100
	San Francisco
	CA
	nweber@heliopower.com

	Honeywell Building Solutions Honeywell
	Cathy Ward
	650-918-3344
	353-A Vintage Park Drive
	Foster City
	CA
	cathy.ward@honeywell.com

	HT Solar Power
	Lara Mendel
	303-922-7815
	2295 S. Lipan Street
	Denver
	CO
	lara.mendel@hwy-tech.com

	IMS
	Andy Wright
	858-490-8806
	945 Hornblend St. Suite G
	San Diego 
	CA
	CA2@imsinfo.com

	Independent Energy Solutions, Inc.
	Lindsey Darnell
	760-752-9706
	1090 Joshua Way
	Vista,
	CA
	ldarnell@indenergysolutions.com

	ISA Corporation
	Anthony Zante
	510-324-3755
	3213 Whipple Road
	Union City
	CA
	tzante@isa-corporation.com

	ISA Corporation
	Tony Zante
	510-324-3755
	3213 Whipple Road
	Union City
	CA
	tzante@isa-corporation.com

	LEAN Energy
	Shawn Marshall
	 
	 
	 
	 
	shawnmarshall@LEANenergyus.org

	Lifestyle Solar Inc
	Larry Hoang
	559-228-0229
	21 E Shaw Ave
	Fresno,
	CA
	larry@lifestylesolarinc.com

	Linkture Corp.
	Opty Fernandez
	949-589-1909
	15 Flagstone
	Trabuco Canyon
	CA
	opty@linkture.com

	Marubeni Corporation
	Hisafumi Manabe
	 -3-3282-7006
	4-2, Ohtemachi 1-Chome
	Chiyoda-KU
	Tokyo
	Manabe-H@marubeni.com

	MBL & Sons, Inc.
	Mark Laubach
	408-590-6160
	954 Hampswood Way
	San Jose
	CA
	mark@mbl-energy.com

	McCalmont Engineering
	Tom McCalmont
	408-871-9600
	1624 Dell Avenue
	Campbell,
	CA
	tom@mccalmont.net

	Morrow - Meadows Corporation
	Jeff Coleman
	909-594-4161
	620 Reyes Drive
	Walnut,
	CA
	jcoleman@morrow-meadows.com

	MP2 Capital, LLC
	Casey Keenan
	415-985-5333
	500 Sansome St. Suite 750
	San Francisco
	CA
	casey@mp2capital.com

	N2 Electric,Inc.
	Nicholas McDaid
	925-447-8882
	3589 First Street, Suite C
	Livermore,
	CA
	n2electric@n2electric.com

	New Energy and Industrial Technology Development Organization
	Aya Iwasuji
	408-567-8033
	3945 Freedom Cir, Ste 790
	Santa Clara
	CA
	aya.iwasuji@nedosv.org

	New Energy and Industrial Technology Development Organization
	Sean Kagiyama
	408-567-8033
	3945 Freedom Circle, Suite 790
	Santa Clara
	CA
	sean.kagiyama@nedosv.org

	Oak Leaf Energy Partners
	Michael  McCabe
	303-893-6945
	2645 E. 2nd. Ave, Suite 206
	Denver
	CO
	mike@oakleafep.com

	OHR Energy - Otto H. Rosentreter Co.
	Kenneth Rosentreter
	562-946-3381
	13039 East Florence Avenue
	Santa Fe Springs
	CA
	ken@ohrenergy.com

	Otto H Rosentreter Company - OHR Energy
	Ken Rosentreter
	562-946-3381
	13039 E. Florence Ave.
	Santa Fe Springs
	 
	ken@ohrenergy.com

	PanelClaw
	Ashan Walpita
	978-688-4900 x207
	155 Montgomery Street, Suite
	San Francisco
	CA
	awalpita@panelclaw.com

	Perpetual Power
	Paul Townsend
	415-990-0027
	6724 Preston Ave.
	Livermore,
	CA
	paul@perpetualpowerllc.com

	Photon Finance LLC
	Reid Rutherford
	650-472-0026
	2570 West El Camino Real, Suite 500
	Mountain View
	CA
	reid@photonhq.com

	PHYchip Corporation
	Dhaval J.  Brahmbhatt
	408-561-1594
	25, N. 14th Street, Suite 400
	San Jose
	CA
	dhaval@phychip.net

	PHYchip Corporation
	Dhaval J.  Brahmbhatt
	408-561-1594
	25, N. 14th Street, Suite 400
	San Jose
	CA
	dhaval@phychip.net

	Pristine Sun
	Kevin White
	650-387-7261
	649 Mission Street, 5th Floor
	San Francisco
	CA
	kevin.white@pristinesun.com

	Prologis
	Blake Kelley
	909-673-8725 
909-673-8700
	2817 E. Cedar St. Suite 200
	Ontario
	CA
	bkelley@prologis.com

	Pure Power Solutions
	Rebecca Lipski
	707-433-6556
	1083 Vine Street #279
	Healdsburg,
	CA
	rebecca@purepowersolutions.com

	Quality Transformer and Electronics, Inc.
	James Nealon
	408-263-8444
	963 Ames Avenue
	Milpitas
	CA
	James.Nealon@QTE.com

	Quantum Energy Services & Technologies, Inc.
	Marc McDonald
	510-540-7200
	2001 Addison St, Ste 300
	Berkeley
	CA
	mmcdonald@quest-world.com

	Raycon Industries, Inc
	David Chang
	408-467-1101
	2010 Hartog Drive
	San Jose
	CA
	davidc@raycon.com

	REC Solar Inc.
	Ben Peters
	805-704-5190
	775 Fiero Lane Ste. 200
	San Luis Obispo
	CA
	bpeters@recsolar.com

	Red Dipper, LLC
	Doug Parrish
	510-746-6041
	1008 Webster Street
	San Francisco
	CA
	doug@reddipper.com

	Red Top Electric
	Michael Curran
	925 667-2900
	6751 Southfront Road
	Livermore,
	CA
	mike@teamredtop.com

	Regeneration Finance
	Nick Stoker
	 
	 
	 
	 
	Nick.Stoker@regenerationfinance.com
wshippee@regenerationfinance.com

	Regeneration Finance
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	Nick.Stoker@regenerationfinance.com

	Regeneration Finance
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	wshippee@regenerationfinance.com

	ReneSola
	Haris Anjum
	415-852-7421
	301 Howard St., Ste. 850
	San Francisco
	CA
	haris.anjum@renesola.com

	Renewable Social Benefit Funds, L3C
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	jdj@rsbfunds.com

	Renewable Social Benefit Funds, L3C A Panasonic Eco Solutions North America Partner
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	jdj@rsbfunds.com

	RGS Energy
	Eric  Yamami
	415-295-4951
	 
	 
	 
	eric.yamami@realgoods.com

	Robert L. Brown Construction, Inc.
	David Brown
	925-228-4944
	4878 Sunrise Drive
	Martinez,
	CA
	dbrown@rlbci.com

	Safari Energy, LLC
	Jessica Elengical
	212-935-2500
	989 6th. Ave, 5th floor
	New York
	NY
	jelengical@safarienergy.com

	SAGE
	Tom Williard
	650-592-7243
	BE1519 Solana Drive.
	Belmont
	CA
	tom@sagerenew.com

	Siemens
	Kelly Fergusson
	(510) 731-3069
	25821 Industrial Blvd, Ste 300
	Hayward
	CA
	kelly.fergusson@siemens.com

	Siemens Industry, Inc.
	Scott Meinzen
	510-305-0967
	25821 Industrial Blvd. #300
	Hayward,
	CA
	scott.meinzen@siemens.com

	Skyline Innovations
	Grant Manning
	202-719-5297
	411 S.Hewitt St.
	Los Angeles
	CA
	gmanning@skylineinnovations.com

	Skyline Innovations, Inc.
	Sandra Lee
	925-270-7634
	411 S Hewitt St
	Los Angeles
	CA
	slee@skylineinnovations.com

	Smart Energy Capital, LLC
	Christina  Stanton
	914-269-8023
	 
	 
	 
	christina@smartenergycapital.com

	smith and sons electric
	david smith
	510-651-4994
	44081 Grimmer Blvd
	Fremont,
	Ca
	djsmith@smithandsonselectric.com

	SoCore Energy
	Rob  Federighi
	773-913-4401
	225 W Hubbard St, Ste 302
	Chicago
	IL
	rfederighi@socoreenergy.com

	SoCore Energy
	Stephen Kelley
	650-740-3320
	1037 Alameda De las Pulgas
	Belmont,
	CA
	skelley@socoreenergy.com

	Solar Frontier Americas, Inc.
	Ravi Menon
	408-206-4152
	3945 Freedom Cir, Ste 360
	Santa Clara
	CA
	Ravi.Menon@solar-frontier.com

	Solar Tech
	Marianne Walpert
	408-943-7061
	3081 Zanker Road 
	San Jose
	CA
	mwalpert@solartech.org

	SolarBOS, Inc.
	Sean Thai
	925-456-7744
	310 Stealth Court
	Livermore,
	CA
	sean@solarbos.com

	SolarCity
	Shouvik Banerjee
	650-963-5874
	 
	 
	 
	sbanerjee@solarcity.com

	SolarCity
	Anastasia Beckett
	650-918-9778
	3055 Clearview Way
	San Mateo
	CA
	abeckett@solarcity.com

	SolarCity
	Jennifer Jachym
	415-373-4504
	 
	 
	 
	jjachym@solarcity.com

	SolarCity
	Andrew Lutkus
	925-785-7567
	 
	 
	 
	alutkus@solarcity.com

	SolarCraft Services, Inc.
	Bill Stewart
	415-382-7717
	285-d Bel Marin Keys Blvd
	Novato,
	CA
	bstewart@solarcraft.com

	Solaria Corporation
	David Hochschild
	510-270-2531
	6200 Paseo Padre Parkway
	Fremont
	CA
	dhochschild@solaria.com

	Solar-Klean
	Phillip D. Green
	650-539-4718
	210 S. Ellsworth ave. #667
	San Mateo
	CA
	pgreen@solar-klean.com

	SolarVision Co
	Andy Skumanich
	408-377-0545
	412 Los Gatos Almaden Rd.
	Los Gatos
	CA
	askumanich@solarvisionco.com

	SolarWorld Americas LLC
	Carol A Smith
	805-388-6279
	4650 Adohrs Lane
	Camarillo
	CA
	carol.smith@solarworldusa.com

	SolEd Benefit Corporation
	David Kunhardt
	415-322-0644
	30 Castro Ave.
	San Rafael
	CA
	david@sol-ed.com

	Sprig Electric
	James Conlow
	408-298-3134 X308
	1860 S. 1011 Street
	San Jose
	CA
	jconlow@sprigelectric.com

	Sprig Electric
	Tony Sarti
	408-298-3134 X208
	1860 S. 1011 Street
	San Jose
	CA
	tsarti@sprigelectric.com

	state energy office, nc
	Bob  Leker
	919-733-1907
	 
	 
	 
	bleker@nccommerce.com

	Sun Light and Power
	Patch Garcia
	510 845 2997 x127
	1035 Folger Avenue
	Berkeley,
	CA
	patch@sunlightandpower.com

	Sundial-Western
	Jon Kramer
	240-463-3688
	518 Walnut St
	Pacific Grove
	CA
	jk2surf@aol.com

	SunEdison
	Sam Youneszadeh
	949-892-7594
	600 Clipper Drive
	Belmont
	CA
	syouneszadeh@sunedison.com

	Sunpods Inc
	Dan Jaeger
	408-464-5899
	1922 The Alameda suite 104
	San Jose
	CA
	djaeger@sunpods.com

	SunPower Corporation
	Bill Kelly
	510-260-8203
	1414 Harbour Way South
	Richmond
	CA
	bill.kelly@sunpowercorp.com

	SunPower Corporation
	Bobby Ram
	408-240-5519
	3939 N. 1 st Street
	San Jose
	CA
	bobby.ram@sunpowercorp.com

	SunPower Corporation
	Beberly Velasquez
	510-260-8384
	1414 Harbour Way South
	Richmond,
	CA
	beberly.velasquez@sunpowercorp.com

	SunPower Corporation, Systems
	Kevin Gardiner
	510-439-4609
	1414 Harbour Way South
	Richmond
	CA
	kevin.gardiner@sunpowercorp.com

	SunSpec Alliance
	John Nunneley
	831-334-5567
	225 Nelson Rd
	Scotts Valley
	CA
	John@SunSpec.org

	Suntrek Industries Inc.
	Janelle Clark
	949-348-9276
	5 Holland Dr. Suite #215
	Irvine
	CA
	jclark@suntreksolar.com

	Suntrek Industries Inc.
	David W. Haskell
	415-342-8123
	25 Glen Drive Suite 1
	Fairfax
	CA
	dhaskell@suntreksolar.com

	Suntrek Industries Inc.
	Phil Negro
	949-348-9276
	2021 Las Positas Ct.
	Livermore
	CA
	phil@suntreksolar.com

	SunWize Technologies, Inc.
	Colelene Clark
	408-510-5073
	111 West Saint John St., Suite 1200
	San Jose
	CA
	cclark@sunwize.com

	Sustainable Technologies
	Ernesto Montenero
	510-523-1122
	1800 Orion Street Suite #101
	Alameda
	CA
	ernesto@sustainabletech.cc

	Swanrock DBA Skytech Solar
	Colin Swan
	415-826-2503
	1501 Mariposa St Suite 319
	San Francisco
	CA
	info@skytechsolar.com

	Synapse Electric
	Coleen Curry
	415-819-0692
	280 Pacific Way
	Muir Beach
	CA
	coleen@synapseelectric.com

	Tetra Tech, Inc.
	Daniel Jordan
	609-58-6283
	3475 East Foothill Boulevard,
	Pasadena
	CA
	daniel.jordan@tetratech.com

	The Dow Chemical Company
	Jim  Perteet
	408-391-1682
	 
	 
	 
	JPerteet@dow.com

	The Solar Company
	John Bernal
	916-384-9053
	 
	 
	 
	john@thesolarco.com

	The Solar Company, Inc.
	Steve Aphugh
	925-206-3170
	20861 Wilbeam Ave.
	Castro Valley
	CA
	steve@thesolarco.com

	Tioga Energy
	Andy Sinnott
	916-983-2276
	2755 Campus Drive, Suite 145
	San Mateo
	CA
	asinnott@tiogaenergy.com

	TRA Environmental Sciences, Inc.
	Taylor  Peterson
	650-400-5767
	545 Middlefield Rd, Ste 200 
	Menlo Park
	CA
	peterson@traenviro.com

	Unirac, Inc.
	Greg Barnes
	505-242-6411
	1411 Broadway Blvd NE
	Albuquerque
	NM
	gregb@unirac.com

	UTC Power Corporation
	Mark Carmichael
	860-727-2022
	195 Governor's Highway
	South Windsor
	CT
	Mark.Carmichael@utcpower.com

	UTC Power Corporation
	Neal Montany
	860-727-2152
	195 Governor's Highway
	South Windsor
	CT
	Neal.Montany@UTCPower.com

	Vanir Construction Management, Inc. 
	Terri  Cruz 
	(510) 663-1800
	1000 Broadway, Ste 475 
	Oakland
	CA
	teri.cruz@vanir.com

	Vanir Construction management, Inc. 
	Robert  Flory
	(510) 663-1800
	1000 Broadway, Ste 475
	Oakland
	CA
	robert.flory@vanir.com

	Veteran Solar Inc.
	Ray Piontek
	650 969-2100
	1061 Seena Avenue
	Los Altos
	CA
	Ray@VeteranSolarInc.Com

	Vista Solar
	Jaymes Callinan
	408-844-7199
	2985 Kife Road
	Santa Clara
	CA
	jaymes@vista-solar.com

	Vista Solar
	Patrick Callinan
	408-844-7149
	2985 Kifer Road
	Santa Clara
	CA
	contactus@vista-solar.com

	Vista Solar
	Mark Frederick
	408-844-7140
	2985 Kifer Road
	Santa Clara
	CA
	markf@vista-solar.com

	 
	LJ Junior
	 
	 
	 
	 
	ljjunior144@gmail.com

	 
	smita khoot
	510-406-4112
	10 south 3rd St, 5th Floor
	San Jose
	CA
	smita@directnuenergy.com


EXHIBIT H

Participating Qualified Vendors LIST

RFP No. 901098 – Regional Renewable Energy Procurement

Below is the Qualified Vendors List for this project consisting of vendors who have been pre-qualified to respond to RFP No. 901098.  This Participating Qualified Vendors List is being provided for informational purposes.

	901098 R-REP Participating Qualified Vendors List

	Prime Firm Name
	Prime Location
	Email

	Albion Power Company, Inc.
	Fremont, CA
	mary@albionpower.com

	AMSOLAR, LLC
	Solana Beach, CA 
	jam@amsolarcorp.com

	Borrego Solar Systems, Inc.
	Oakland, CA 
	kkearney@borregosolar.com

	Cool Earth Solar, Inc.
	Livermore, CA
	tchen@coolearthsolar.com

	Cupertino Electric, Inc.
	San Jose, CA
	Paul_Aggarwal@cei.com

	Ecoplexus, Inc.
	San Francisco, CA
	epaul@ecoplexus.com

	EDF Renewable Energy, Inc.
	San Ramon, CA 
	nader.jandaghi@edf-re.com

	Gehrlicher Solar, a Company of the M+W Group (GSAC)
	Alameda, California
	Katie.Black@mwgroup.net

	Gestamp Asetym Solar North America ("GASNA" or "Gestamp Solar") on behalf of LLC
	San Francisco, CA
	edgar.arvizu@gestampren.com

	REC Solar, Inc.
	San Luis Obispo, CA
	rpark@recsolar.com

	SolarCity Corporation
	San Mateo, CA
	abeckett@solarcity.com

	SOLON CORPORATION
	San Francisco, CA
	felicia.bellows@solon.com

	SunEdison Government Solutions, LLC
	Belmont, CA
	pgiese@sunedison.com

	SunPower Corporation, Systems
	Richmond CA
	bob.redlinger@sunpowercorp.com

	Tecta Solar, a Division of Tecta America Corp.
	Fort Washington, PA
	rrabe@tectaamerica.com

	Vanir Construction Management, Inc.
	Oakland, CA
	robert.flory@vanir.com


EXHIBIT I

Site walk attendees 

Below is the Site Walk Attendees List for this project consisting of people whom attended the site walks for RFP No. 901098.  This Site Walk Attendees List is being provided for informational purposes.

	R-REP  - Santa Rita Jail/Santa Rita Jail Multiple Sites

	Business Name
	Contact Name
	Email

	Cupertino Electric
	Jerry Ashley
	jerry_ashley@cei.com

	Ecoplexus
	Eric Paul
	epaul@ecoplexus.com

	Ecoplexus
	Jeremy Berke
	jberke@ecoplexus.com

	Gehrlicher/M&W Group
	Katie Black
	Katie.Black@mwgroup.net

	M Bar C Construction
	Bobby Bonfanti
	BobbyB@Mbarconline.com

	Shanks Electric
	Shanna Shanks
	sshank@shankscorp.com

	Shanks Electric
	Forrest Shanks
	shankscorp@shankscorp.com

	SunEdison
	Pete Giese
	pgiese@sunedisom.com

	SunEdison
	Raam Perumal
	rperumal2@sunedison.com

	SunPower
	Taylor Davis
	taylor.davis@sunpower.com

	Borrego Solar
	Kyle Kearney
	kkearney@borregosolar.com

	Borrego Solar
	Tarn Yates
	tyates@borregosolar.com

	Vanir
	Mike Koski
	mike.koski@vanir.com

	Vanir
	Eric Barger
	Eric.barger@vanir.com

	Cool Earth Solar
	Jake Rudisill
	jrudisill@coolearthsolar.com

	Alta M Energy
	Jeff Hintzkie
	jhintzke@altaenergyinc.com

	Cool Earth Solar
	Peter O'Brien
	pobrien@coolearthsolar.com

	Cool Earth Solar
	Tony Chen
	tchen@coolearthsolar.com

	BPI
	Brian Peterson
	brian@bpi-power.com

	BPI
	Julius Bosch
	julius@bpi-power.com

	Gestamp
	Robin Anliker
	robin.anliker@gestampren.com

	D.C. Taylor Co
	Michael O'Bryant
	michael.obryant@dctaylor.com

	MBL Energy
	Jay Kirby
	Jay@MBL-energy.com

	SolarCity
	Jen Jachym
	jjachym@solarcity.com

	SolarCity
	Brad Detjen
	bdetjen@solarcity.com

	Solar Frontier
	Ravi Menon
	ravi.menon@solar-frontier.com

	McCalmont Eng.
	Charlie Dearie
	charlie.dearie@mccalmont.net

	EDF RE
	Vince Gibbs
	vince.gibbs@edf-re.com

	EDF RE
	Phil Hawtin
	phil.hawtin@edf-re.com

	
	
	

	
	
	

	R-REP  - Alameda County Martinelli Event Center

	Business Name
	Contact Name
	Email

	Shanks Electric
	Shanna Shanks
	sshank@shankscorp.com

	Alta M Energy
	Jeff Hintzkie
	jhintzke@altaenergyinc.com

	Vanir
	Eric Barger
	Eric.barger@vanir.com

	Vanir
	Mike Koski
	mike.koski@vanir.com

	BPI
	Julius Bosch
	julius@bpi-power.com

	SolarCity
	Jen Jachym
	jjachym@solarcity.com

	SolarCity
	Brad Detjen
	bdetjen@solarcity.com

	Solar Frontier
	Ravi Menon
	ravi.menon@solar-frontier.com

	EDF RE
	Phil Hawtin
	phil.hawtin@edf-re.com

	EDF RE
	Vince Gibbs
	vince.gibbs@edf-re.com

	Cupertino Electric
	Jerry Ashley
	jerry_ashley@cei.com

	Ecoplexus
	Eric Paul
	epaul@ecoplexus.com

	Ecoplexus
	Jeremy Berke
	jberke@ecoplexus.com

	Gehrlicher/M&W Group
	Katie Black
	Katie.Black@mwgroup.net

	MBL Energy
	Jay Kirby
	Jay@MBL-energy.com

	Gestamp
	Robin Anliker
	robin.anliker@gestampren.com

	SunPower
	Bob Redlinger
	bob.redlinger@sunpowercorp.com

	McCalmont Eng.
	Charlie Dearie
	charlie.dearie@mccalmont.net

	Shanks Electric
	Forrest Shanks
	shankscorp@shankscorp.com

	Albion Power Company
	Charles Adams
	cadams@albionpower.com

	
	
	

	
	
	

	R-REP  - City of Cupertino

	Business Name
	Contact Name
	Email

	CupertinoElectric
	Mark Lahlouh
	Mark_Lahlouh@cei.com

	SolarCity
	Anastasia Beckett
	abeckett@solarcity.com

	Sprig Electric
	Mike Clifton
	mclifton@sprigelectric.com

	Vanir
	Eric Barger
	Eric.barger@vanir.com

	Vanir
	Mike Koski
	mike.koski@vanir.com

	Vanir
	Thom Blach
	thomas.blach@vanir.com

	SunLight and Power
	Jeff Barboni
	jbarboni@sunlightandpower.com

	McCalmont Eng.
	Aaron McCalmont
	aaron@mccalmont.net

	
	
	

	
	
	

	R-REP  - Menlo Park

	Business Name
	Contact Name
	Email

	SolarCity
	Anastasia Beckett
	abeckett@solarcity.com

	CupertinoElectric
	Mark Lahlouh
	Mark_Lahlouh@cei.com

	Vanir
	Eric Barger
	Eric.barger@vanir.com

	Vanir
	Mike Koski
	mike.koski@vanir.com

	Vanir
	Thom Blach
	thomas.blach@vanir.com

	McCalmont Eng.
	Aaron McCalmont
	aaron@mccalmont.net

	Sprig Electric
	Mike Clifton
	mclifton@sprigelectric.com

	SunLight and Power
	Jeff Barboni
	jbarboni@sunlightandpower.com

	
	
	

	
	
	

	R-REP  - Fremont Police Station

	Business Name
	Contact Name
	Email

	Ecoplexus
	Eric Paul
	epaul@ecoplexus.com

	MBL & Sons, Inc
	Mark Laubach
	mark@MBL-energy.com

	Gehrlicher/M&W Group
	Katie Black
	Katie.Black@mwgroup.net

	Shanks Electric
	Shanna Shanks
	sshank@shankscorp.com

	Shanks Electric
	Forrest Shanks
	shankscorp@shankscorp.com

	Sunlight and Power
	J. Milliman
	jmilliman@sunlightandpower.com

	BPI
	Brian Peterson
	brian@bpi-power.com

	BPI
	Julius Bosch
	julius@bpi-power.com

	Vanir
	Mike Koski
	mike.koski@vanir.com

	Vanir
	Thom Blach
	thomas.blach@vanir.com

	SolarCity
	Anastasia Beckett
	abeckett@solarcity.com

	SLP/Gestamp
	Jesse Quay
	jesse@sunlightandpower.com

	McCalmont Eng.
	Aaron McCalmont
	aaron@mccalmont.net

	Borrego Solar
	Kyle Kearney
	kkearney@borregosolar.com

	Borrego Solar
	Tarn Yates
	tyates@borregosolar.com

	
	
	

	
	
	

	R-REP  - Richmond Park

	Business Name
	Contact Name
	Email

	Vanir
	Eric Barger
	Eric.barger@vanir.com

	Vanir
	Thom Blach
	thomas.blach@vanir.com

	
	
	

	
	
	

	R-REP  - RSF

	Business Name
	Contact Name
	Email

	Gehrlicher Solar
	Ron Perina
	ron.perina@mwgroup.net

	MBL Energy
	Chris Beck
	chris@MBL-energy.com

	Vanir
	Eric Barger
	Eric.barger@vanir.com

	Ecoplexus
	Eric Paul
	epaul@ecoplexus.com

	SLP/Gestamp
	Jesse Quay
	jesse@sunlightandpower.com

	
	
	

	
	
	

	R-REP  - Civic Center Ave.

	Business Name
	Contact Name
	Email

	Ecoplexus
	Eric Paul
	epaul@ecoplexus.com

	Vanir
	Eric Barger
	Eric.barger@vanir.com

	BPI
	Brian Peterson
	brian@bpi-power.com

	BPI
	Julius Bosch
	julius@bpi-power.com

	BCE
	Marc A. Davis
	mdavis@barnumcelillo.com

	
	
	

	
	
	

	R-REP  - Sheriff's Center

	Business Name
	Contact Name
	Email

	Vanir
	Eric Barger
	Eric.barger@vanir.com

	BPI
	Brian Peterson
	brian@bpi-power.com

	Ecoplexus
	Eric Paul
	epaul@ecoplexus.com

	BPI
	Julius Bosch
	julius@bpi-power.com

	D.C. Taylor Co
	Michael O'Bryant
	michael.obryant@dctaylor.com

	BCE
	Marc A. Davis
	mdavis@barnumcelillo.com

	
	
	

	
	
	

	R-REP  - Juvenile Hall

	Business Name
	Contact Name
	Email

	Vanir
	Eric Barger
	Eric.barger@vanir.com

	Ecoplexus
	Eric Paul
	epaul@ecoplexus.com

	BPI
	Brian Peterson
	brian@bpi-power.com

	BPI
	Julius Bosch
	julius@bpi-power.com

	
	
	

	
	
	

	R-REP  - Oakland Municipal Center

	Business Name
	Contact Name
	Email

	Albion Power Company
	Charles Adams
	cadams@albionpower.com

	Ecoplexus
	Eric Paul
	epaul@ecoplexus.com

	Vanir
	Eric Barger
	Eric.barger@vanir.com

	Vanir
	Thom Blach
	thomas.blach@vanir.com

	Albion Power Company
	Howard Kahn
	solar@albionpower.com

	BPI
	Brian Peterson
	brian@bpi-power.com

	BPI
	Julius Bosch
	julius@bpi-power.com

	Absolute Power
	Mark Shervin
	916-919-02758

	Ward Fielding
	Westtel Const.
	707-761-6808

	Cool Earth Solar
	Tony Chen
	tchen@coolearthsolar.com

	Cool Earth Solar
	Jake Rudisill
	jrudisill@coolearthsolar.com

	Solar Frontier
	Ravi Menon
	ravi.menon@solar-frontier.com

	Westco Roofing Co. Inc.
	Andrew Goddard
	andy@westcoroofing.com

	
	
	

	
	
	

	R-REP  - SMMC

	Business Name
	Contact Name
	Email

	Cool Earth Solar
	Jake Rudisill
	jrudisill@coolearthsolar.com

	MBL- Energy
	Nick Sindle
	nick@MBL-Energy.com

	Gehrlicher Solar
	Ron Perina
	ron.perina@mwgroup.net

	Ecoplexus
	Eric Paul
	epaul@ecoplexus.com

	Cool Earth Solar
	Tony Chen
	tchen@coolearthsolar.com

	Solar Frontier
	Ravi Menon
	ravi.menon@solar-frontier.com

	Vanir
	Eric Barger
	Eric.barger@vanir.com

	Vanir
	Thom Blach
	thomas.blach@vanir.com

	Borrego Solar
	Tarn Yates
	tyates@borregosolar.com

	BPI
	Brian Peterson
	brian@bpi-power.com

	BPI
	Julius Bosch
	julius@bpi-power.com

	SunPower
	Bob Redlinger
	bob.redlinger@sunpowercorp.com

	
	
	

	
	
	

	R-REP  - Alco Parking Garage

	Business Name
	Contact Name
	Email

	Absolute Power
	Mark Shervin
	916-919-02758

	Next Phase Solar
	Adam Burstein
	adam@nextphasesolar.com

	Vanir
	Eric Barger
	Eric.barger@vanir.com

	Cool Earth Solar
	Tony Chen
	tchen@coolearthsolar.com

	Albion Power Company
	Charles Adams
	cadams@albionpower.com

	Cool Earth Solar
	Jake Rudisill
	jrudisill@coolearthsolar.com

	Solar Frontier
	Ravi Menon
	ravi.menon@solar-frontier.com

	Veteran Solar
	Ray Planter
	ray@veteransolar.com

	
	
	

	
	
	

	R-REP  - University Village

	Business Name
	Contact Name
	Email

	Gehrlicher Solar
	Ron Perina
	ron.perina@mwgroup.net

	MBL Energy
	Chris Beck
	chris@MBL-energy.com

	Ecoplexus
	Eric Paul
	epaul@ecoplexus.com

	Vanir
	Eric Barger
	Eric.barger@vanir.com

	Vanir
	Thom Blach
	thomas.blach@vanir.com

	CupertinoElectric
	Mark Lahlouh
	Mark_Lahlouh@cei.com

	Cool Earth Solar
	Jake Rudisill
	jrudisill@coolearthsolar.com

	Mbarc Construction
	Bobby Bonianti
	bobbyb@mbarconline.com

	BPI
	Brian Peterson
	brian@bpi-power.com

	BPI
	Julius Bosch
	julius@bpi-power.com

	Solar Frontier
	Ravi Menon
	ravi.menon@solar-frontier.com

	Cool Earth Solar
	Peter O'Brien
	pobrien@coolearthsolar.com

	SunPower
	Bob Redlinger
	bob.redlinger@sunpowercorp.com

	
	
	

	
	
	

	R-REP  - Jackson Buildings

	Business Name
	Contact Name
	Email

	Cupertino
	Jerry Ashley
	jerry_ashley@cei.com

	Solar Frontier
	Ravi Menon
	ravi.menon@solar-frontier.com

	Veteran Solar
	Ray Pionter
	ray@veteransolarinc.com

	Cool Earth Solar
	Tony Chen
	tchen@coolearthsolar.com

	Cool Earth Solar
	Jake Rudisill
	jrudisill@coolearthsolar.com

	Vanir
	Eric Barger
	Eric.barger@vanir.com

	Albion Power Company
	Charles Adams
	cadams@albionpower.com

	Absolute Power
	Mark Shervin
	916-919-02758

	Absolute Power
	Frank Joga
	fjoga@aol.com

	BPI
	Brian Peterson
	brian@bpi-power.com

	Westco Roofing Co. Inc.
	Andrew Goddard
	andy@westcoroofing.com

	
	
	

	
	
	

	R-REP  - Hayward Landfill

	Business Name
	Contact Name
	Email

	SunPower
	Emily Humphreys
	emily.humphreys@sunpower.com

	EDF Renewable Energy
	Nader Jandaghi
	nader.jandaghi@edf.re.com

	Albion Power
	Howard Rahn
	 

	Absolute Power
	Mark Shervin
	916-919-02758

	Nextracker/Solaria
	Tyroan Hardy
	thardy@solaria.com

	Cool Earth Solar
	Tony Chen
	tchen@coolearthsolar.com

	Cool Earth Solar
	Peter O'Brien
	pobrien@coolearthsolar.com

	Solar Frontier
	Ravi Menon
	ravi.menon@solar-frontier.com

	Vanir
	Eric Barger
	Eric.barger@vanir.com

	Borrego Solar
	Tarn Yates
	tyates@borregosolar.com

	Cool Earth Solar
	Jake Rudisill
	jrudisill@coolearthsolar.com

	Veteran Solar
	Ray Pionter
	ray@veteransolarinc.com

	BPI
	Brian Peterson
	brian@bpi-power.com

	Ecoplexus
	Eric Paul
	epaul@ecoplexus.com

	SunEdison
	Raam Perumal
	rperumal2@sunedison.com

	EDF Renewable Energy
	Vince Gibbs
	vince.gibbs@edf.re.com

	APS
	Frank Joga
	fjoga@aol.com

	Albion Power Company
	Charles Adams
	cadams@albionpower.com

	Granite Const.
	Nick Jouras
	nicholas.jouras@gcinc.com


[image: image1.png]



EXHIBIT J

Workforce development conference attendees 

Below is the Mandatory Workforce Development Attendees List for this project consisting of people who attended the Mandatory Workforce Development Conference on December 6, 2013 for RFP No. 901098.  Per the Notice of Qualification issued on October 29, 2013 and reminder email communication to vendors on December 4, 2013, vendors who did not attend the Mandatory Workforce Development Conference will be subject to a bid scoring penalty
	R-REP  - Workforce Development Conference 

	Business Name
	Contact Name
	Email

	Tecta Solar Corp.
	Ron Braswell
	rbraswell@tectaamerica.org


	Gestamp Solar 
	Chelsea Turner 
	Chelsea.Turner@gestamp.com

	Ecoplexus, Inc.
	Gary Eberhart
	geberhart@ecoplexus.com 

	REC Solar, Inc.
	Ben Peters 
	bpeters@recsolar.com

	EDF Renewable Energy, Inc.
	Vince Gibbs
	Vince.gibbs@edf-re.com

	Albion Power Company, Inc. 
	Mary Rodriguez 
	mary@albionpower.com 

	Cool Earth Solar, Inc. 
	Tony Chen 
	Tchen@coolearthsolar.com

	AMSOLAR , LLC
	Matthew Skidmore 
	mskidrion@sundurance.com

	Cupertino Electric, Inc.
	Christina Hatzistratis
	Christina_Hatzistratis@cei.com 

	Gherlicher
	Katie Black 
	Katie.black@mwgroup 

	Vanir, Inc.
	Eric Barger
	Robert.flory@vanir.com

	Solar City Corp.
	Jennifer Jacklyn
	jjachlyn@solarcity.com

	Borrego, Inc.
	Jim Brennan
	jbrennas@borregosolar.com

	SunPower Corp.
	Seth Sakamoto
	Seth.sakamoto@sunpower.com

	Shanks Electric
	Wanda Race
	shankscorp@shankscorp.com

	SunEdison, LLC.
	Jeffrey Spinardi 
	jspinardi@sunedison.com 


1401 Lakeside Drive, Suite 907 ( Oakland, CA 94612

Phone: 510-208-9600 ( Website: http://www.acgov.org/gsa/departments/purchasing/
I:\PURCHASING\Contracting Opportunities\Purchasing\R-Rep Procurement (901098)Addendum4_RREP.doc
Rev 2012-11-02
RFP No. 900977, Addendum No. 2 

Page 2

